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ndependent Auditors Repart

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of Kazakhstan Housing
Company JSC

We have audited the financial statements of Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (the
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Republic of Kazakhstan, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Expected credit losses (ECL) for loans to customers and long-term finance lease

receivables

| Please refer to the Notes 3(e(iii), 4,15 and 16 in the financial statements.

R

| The key audit matter

| Loans to customers, long-term
receivables from sales of real
estate under the instaiment
agreements and finance lease
receivables represent more than
22% of total assets and are
presented net of allowance for
expected credit losses (‘ECL’)
that is estimated on a regular

basis and is sensitive to
assumptions used.
The Company uses ECL

| valuation model, which requires
management to apply
professional judgment and to
make assumptions related to the
following key areas:

—timely identification  of
significant increase in credit
risk and default events
related to loans to
customers, receivables from
sales of real estate under the |
instalment agreements and |
finance lease receivables;

—assessment of probability of
default (PD) and loss given
default (LGD);

—assessment of add-on
adjustment to account for
different scenarios and
forward-looking information;

—expected cash flows forecast
for loans to customers,
receivables from sales of real |
estate under the instalment |
agreements and finance
lease receivables, which are
credit-impaired.

There is an increased risk of |
material misstatement of
expected credit losses in the |
current year due to the higher
uncertainty related fo |
judgements and estimates |

m COWINDL10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We analysed the key aspects of changes in the
methodology and policies of the Company as well as
the policies of the merged companies related to the
ECL estimate for compliance with the requirements of
IFRS 9 and for comparability of the models and their
consistent use, with the involvement of our own
financial risks management specialists.

To analyse the adequacy of professional judgement
and assumptions made by the management in relation
to the allowance for ECL estimate, our audit
procedures included the following:

—We tested design and operating effectiveness of
controls over allocation of loans to customers,
receivables from sales of real estate under the
instalment agreements and finance lease
receivables into credit risk stages.

—For a sample of loans to customers, receivables |

from sales of real estate under the instalment
agreements and finance lease receivables, for
which the potential changes in ECL estimate may
have a significant impact on the financial
statements, we tested whether stages are correctly
assigned by the Company by analysing financial
and non-financial information, as well as
assumptions and professional judgements, applied
by the Company.

—Regarding the loans to customers, receivables from
sales of real estate under the instalment
agreements and finance lease receivables
assigned to stages 1 and 2 of the credit risk, for
which ECL is assessed collectively, we tested the
design and implementation of the related models,
as well as agreeing input data to supporting
documents on a sample basis. We focused on
allocation of the credit risk stage for the loans
restructured as a result of COVID-19 outbreak, as
well as on counterparties operated in the industries
affected by COVID-19.

—We also analysed the overall adequacy of the
adjustment to account for various scenarios and
forward-looking information and compared it with

our estimates taking into account the current and |

future economic situation and operating conditions
of borrowers and debtors included in relevant
grades. As part of this work we tested the
appropriateness of the Company’s assessment of

rociilt e
eauiiniy 1o J Vi =rJd.

the economic uncertainty related to COVID-19.
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Due to the significant volume of
loans to customers, receivables
from sales of real estate under
the instalment agreements and
finance lease receivables and
the related estimation
uncertainty, this area is a key
audit matter.

Government grants

The key audit matter

During 2020,
investments for subsequent
financing of the housing
investment projects as part of the
state programme Nurly Zher, the
Company issued debt securities
with the total nominal value of
KZT 500,000,000 thousand
bearing the interest rate of 6.02%
per annum. At initial recognition
the debt securities issued were
recognised at fair value
measured by applying relevant
market interest rates to discount
the future contractual cash flows. |

to attract

The difference between the fair
value and the nominal value
received of KZT 185,533,819
thousand was recognised as a
government grant, which is
subsequently amortised in profit|
or loss.

_ We focused on the estimate of lhe:
| fair value of the debt securities

Please refer to the Notes 3(r), 8, 14, 19 and 21 in the financial statements.

—We assessed the current efficiency of the significant
increase in credit risk (SICR) criterion and
determined independently an appropriate allocation
of the loans to customers, receivables from sales of
real estate under the instalment agreements and
finance lease receivables for a sample, for which
the potential changes in ECL estimate may have a
significant impact on the financial statements. |

—For a sample of loans to customers, receivables
from sales of real estate under the instalment |
agreements and finance lease receivables
allocated to stage 3 of credit risk, we critically
assessed assumptions used by the Company to
expected cash flows, including estimated proceeds
from realisation of collateral and their timing, on the
basis of our understanding and available market
information. We focused on the borrowers that can
potentially have the most significant impact on the
financial statements.

We also assessed whether the financial statements
disclosures appropriately reflect the Company's
exposure to credit risk.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included analysis of the|
management assessment whether the difference|
between the fair value and nominal value of the|
consideration received represent a government grant.

We compared the management's estimates of the
market rates applied to calculate fair values of the debt
securities issued at below-market rates and compared
them to available market information.

We assessed the appropriateness of methods used to
amortise government grants.

We also assessed whether the financial statement|
disclosures appropriately reflect the information in
relation to government grants.

issued due to  significan

judgment involved in arriving a
| the estimate.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibiiity is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal conirol.
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— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern,

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is:

Assel Urdabayeva o
Certified Auditor :
of the Republic of Kazakhstan

Auditors-QualificationCertificate
# M®-0000096 of 27 August 2012

KPMG Audit LLC

State License to conduct audit # 0000021 dated 6 December 2006 issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan

/

/
(
Sergey Dementyev

General Director of KPMG Audit LLC”

geting o the basts of fts Charter

1 March 2021



Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Mortgage Organisation Kazakhstan Mortgage Company JSC)
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2020

Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method

Other interest income

Interest expenses

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses
Net fee and commission expense
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Net realised gain on investment securities measured
at fair value through profit or loss

Net insurance premiums earned
Other operating income/(expenses)
Operating income

Impairment (losses)/gains on debt financial
instruments

Provisions for guarantees issued
Personnel expenses

General and administrative expenses
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year

Note

22

10

11

2020 2019
‘000 KZT ‘000 KZT
53,266,655 11,308,769
11,217,728 9,077,209
(40,285,767) (7,939,001)
24,198,616 12,446,977
23,568 13,045
(375,219) (285,583)
(351,651) (272,538)
74,885 (4,719)
211,514 99,509
297,481 s
3,982,027 (306,907)
28,412,872 11,962,322
(7,040,718) 882,225
(9,483,772) -
(1,865,938) (1,528,295)
(1,776,670) (1,397,141)
8,245,774 9,919,111
(2,194,096) (1,327,345)
6,051,678 8,591,766

The financial statements as set out on pages 8 to 77 were approved by management on 1 March

2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

]
KA 3A K
TU-EAK(I’\H

5y

'de{‘;!”r\ruw{ ,‘_J

.\_}.—
.D. Sagimkulova

A.T. Toktarkozha

Financial Director,

Chief Accountant

member of Management Board

8

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes

to, and forming part of, the financial statements.



Kuzakhstan Housing Company JSC (foriner Mortgage Organisation Kazakhstan Mortgage Company JSC)
o Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

) 2020 2019

Note Y000 KZT ‘900 KZT
ASSETS
Cash.and cash equivalents 12: 63,619,060 32,735,123
Placements with banks and other financial o
institutions 13 '69,-’728,_93-3 2,013,628
Investment securities;
- measured at fair value through profit or loss 14 2,932,039 2,719,292
- measured at amortised cost 14 617,887,952 19,918,195
Loans to-customers and long-term receivables from o
sales-of real estate under instalment agreements . 15 135,292,670 62,663,247
Finance lease receivables 16 164,270,564 143,791,036
Current tax asset’ 2,843,520 1,135,442
.Advances paid for acquisition and construction of _ o
real éstate 147,859 581,978
Assets to be transfeired under finance lease _ _ _
-agreéements. 17 4,121,178 2,274,682
Construction-in-progress 18 {,883,436 1,534,061
Property, plant and eqaipment 4,867,901 1,968,153
Investment property 5,834,099 187,421
‘Non-current assets held for sale 306,540 -
Other assets 1,201,557 1,183,936
Totat assets 1,374,938,208 272,706,194
LIABILITIES
Debt securities issued 19 738,066,735 67,683,718
Other borrowed funds 20 208,647,686 33,389,460
Government grants 21 197,563,476 98,052,131
Deferred income and provision for guarantees issued 22 13,456,567 -
Deférred tax liability 11 11,098,775 1,870,669
Other liabilities. 5,853,535 2,617,680
Total liabitities 1,174,686,774 203,613,658
EQUITY 23
Share capital 193,432,016 63,313,800
Share premium 12,661 12,661
Treasury shares {2,597,522) (2,597,522)
Additional paid-in capital 3:389.392 5;822,856
Reserve capital 2,734,447 2,734,447
Accumulated losses/(retained earnings) 3,280,440 (193,706)
Total equity 200,251,434 69,092,536
Tetal equity and liabilities 1.374,938,208 272,706,194

9

The statement of financial position is to be read in ‘conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of, the

financial statements;



Kizakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Maﬂgage-Organisa_ﬁm: Kazakhstan Morigage Comparny JSC)
Statement of Cash Flo ws for the year ended 31 December 2020

_ 2020 2019
{' ‘008 KZT ‘000 KZT
{ CASH 'FLOWS'FROM_ OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest receipts 24,598 328 15,384,760
P Interest paymerits (10,464,732) (6,501,788)
Fee and commission receipts 29,608 12,870
I ‘Fee and commission payments (373,783) (255471)
[ Other income receipts 657,993 369,779
‘Personne] expenses payments; (1,903,753) (1,635,305}
i General and administrative ‘expenses paynients (1,796,779) (1,322,393)
- 10,746,882 6,052,452
{Increase)/decrease in operating assets
f Placements with bariks and other firiancial institutions (36,913,378) 459,270
[ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 9,675 2,003,151
Loans to customers and long-térm receivables from sales of real -
[ estate under instalment agréements 401,647 (19,042, 721y
Assets to be transferred under finance lease agreements (3,769,760) (1,889,871)
[ Construction-in-progress (252,080) (666,445}
[ Finance lease receivables 7,835,671 6,449,271
- Other assets 1,309910 761,708
{' Increase /(decrease) in opera_ting.liabi]iﬁes-
[ Government grants. 146,637 (340,297
Deferred income on guarantees issued 216,499 -
P Other Habilities 161,467 {163,128)
(- Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities before _ _
income tax paid (20,106,830) (6,376,610)
- Inome tax paid {63,016} (37,775)
Cash flows (used in) operating activities (20,169,846) (6,414,385)
I- CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
3 Acquisition of investment securities meastred at amortised _ -
cost. (656,053,351) (86,481,398)
| Repayment of investment securities measured at amortised o o
cost 190,066,288 79,500,000
{ Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible _ _
assets (2,573) (245,843)
L. Proceeds from sale of investmerit property 16,189 297,954
Cash receipts due to merger (Note 27) 35,103,426 -
Cash flows used in investing activities (430,870,021) 6,929,287
| .
[
{
I.
[
|
| 10
{ The-statement of cashi flows is to be tead in conjibction with the notes to, and forminig part of, the financial

‘statemenis.
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (foriner Mortgage Organisation Kuzakhstan Mortgage Company WAY (o)
Statement-of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repurchase/redemption of debt securities issued
Proceeds friom debt securifies issued

Receipts of other borrowed funds

Dividends paid

Cash flows from financing sctivities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalerits

Effect of changes in expected credit losses on cash and cash
equivalents:

Effect of movements in exchangé rates on cash and cash
equivalents '

Cash and cash equivalents-at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Note 12)

2020 2019
000 KZT ‘000 KZT

(16,507,000) (10,000,000)
500,479,994 11,425,002
478,500 -
(2,577,532) (1,385,764)
481,873,962 39,238
30,834,095 (13,304,434)
13,540 139,339
36,302 (3,172)
32,735,123 45,903,390
63,619,060 32,735,123

e

11

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjinction with the fiotes to, and forming part of, the financial

statements.
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(a)

Kazakiistan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation Kazakhistan. Morigage C. ompany JSC)
Notes io the-Financial Siatements for the year enided 31 Decerber 2020

Reporting entity
Organisation and operations

Kazakhstah Housing Company JSC (the “Company™) was established on 29 December 2000 as
Mortgage Organisation Kazakhstan Mortgage Company JSC in accordance with the Resolution
No.469 of the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan {the “NBRK™) dated 20 December
2000. The principal activity of the Conipany is exténsion of mortgage loans in accordance with the
license for banking borrowing transactions issued by the authorised body. The Company may
additionally perform trust, factoring, forfeiting and leasing operations. The Company is-authorised
to carry out the following activities; '

. investment activity;

- financing and implementation of investment projects including by nieans-of acquiring bonds
1ssued by local executive bodies;

. conditional placements with the second-tier banks and extension of loans to other financial

institutions;
. issue and placenient of securities including bonds;
. lease of real estate properties including that with an option to purchase;
. granting guarantees for completion of the construction of a residential building, its

commissioning in the event of a guarantee.event and the transfer of shares in the residential
building to equity holders;

*  extenditig loans to an authorised organisation designated in accordance with the Law of the
Republic of Kazakhstan “On Shared Participation in Housing Construction”, and to legal
entities which catry out construction as part of public housing programs;

. su'bsidising_' a part of interest rate for mortgage leans issued by second-tier banks to
individuats,

On 12 April 2010 the Company obtained a banking license No.5.1.69 to carry out banking lending

transactions.

Financial Market of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Company’s registered office is Building 55A, Mangilik el Ave., Nur-Sultan, Z05T3E2,
Republic of Kazakhstan,

As part of implementation of the order of the President of the Republic of Kazakhstan Kassym-
Zhomart Tokayev dated 2 September 2019 to reduce the number of ‘operators of the housing
programmes, in accordance with the Order No. 156 dated 20 March-2020 of the Ministry of Industry-
and Infrastructure Developrnent of the Republic of Kazakhstan, a decision was made to reorganise

The activities of the Company are regulated by the Agency for Regulation and Developinéiit of the

(b)

Mortgage- Organisation- Kazakhstan Mortgags Company Joint  Stock Company and Baiterek
Development Joint Stock Company (“BD JSC”) and Housing Guarantee Fund JSC (“HGF ISC™)
through the Company’s takeover of BD JSC and HGF ISC. In accordance witli the transfer and
acceptance acts of 30 July 2020 and 16 November 2020, the assets and liabifities of BD JSC and
HGF JSC havé been transferred respectively.

‘Shareholders
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 the Company is wholly-owned by the National

Management Holding Baiterck JSC (the “Parent Company™). The party with- ultimate contro] over
the Company is the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

13



{ Kazakiistan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organ isation Kazakkhstan Meotigage Compuny JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

| (c) XKazakhstan business environment
I The Company’s. operations. are primarily locatéd in Kazakhstan. Consequently, the Company is
exposed to the economic’ and financial markets of Kazakhstan which display characteristics 6f an
l emerging market. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks continue development, but are subject
= to varying interpretations and frequent changes which together with other legal and fiscal
tmpedimerits contribute to the challenges faced by entities operating in Kazakhstan.
i The first months of 2020 bave séen significant global market turmoil triggered by the outbreak of
the coronavirus. The World Health Organization declared on 11 March 2020 the coronavirus
‘ (COVID-19) outbreak a pandemic. Responding to the potentially serious. threat the COVID-19
presents to public health, for the purpose.of proteetion of life and health of the citizens, a decision
I was made, pursuant to the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, to introduce the state ‘of
s emergency throughout the Republic of Kazakhstan for the period from 16 March 2020 to 12 May
2020. During the state of emergency periad, regional authorities gradually introduced additional
[ measures to enhance social distancing, inclu ing closing schools, universities, restaurants, cinemas,
theatres and museims and.sport facilities.
i Due to business distuption and lockdown in many countries, global oil demand has drastically
decreased leading to oversupply and sharp fall in-oil prices. On 12 April 2020, major global oil
[ producers including Kazakhstan agreed to a record cut in crude oil production for stabilizing the oil
r tharket, which, however, has not been able to reverse the downward pressure.on the oil market.

Shar.p decreasé in oil prices and production. volumes results in -correspondin_g decrease of oil
I producers’ income and payments to the republican budget, which is likely to hiave major economic
and social consequences and unavoidably affect public sector'spending,.

To continue as a going concern, the Company keeps carrying out its operations using a remote
- access and takes measures to protect health of the employees working on site, including provision
' of the individual protective devices, observance of distancing regime, and disinfection of the
. Company’s premises.

As patt of execution of Order of the Chairman of the Agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan for
[ Regulation and Development of the Financial Market No. 167 dated 26 March 2020 “On.approval

of the procedure of suspension of repayment of principal debt and interests on 16ans issued to
I individuals, small and medium-sez businesses that have suffered as a résult of introduction of the
0 state of emergency”, upon application of borrowers, the Company provided a deferment of payment
for the'périod of duration of the state of emergency. '

P Taking into account the Company's current operational and financial performance along withi other
currently available public information, within the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
[ adjusted macroeconomic indicators in estimates of expected credit losses. However, management
f cannot preclude the possibility thit extended lockdown periods, an escalation in severity of such

measures, or a:consequential adverse impact of such measures on the econdmic environmerit will.

have an adverse effect on the Company in the medivin and longer term. The Company continues:

to. monitor the situations closely and will respond to mitigate the jmpact of such events and
circumstances as they occur,

These financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Kazakhstan
{ business environment on the operations and the financial position of the Company. The future
business environment may differ from management’s assessment.
[. 2 Basis of accounting
' (a) Statement of compliance

| These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
| ‘Standards (IFRS),

I _(b) _ Basis of- messurement

T'he Tinancial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis:except for the financial instruments
[ at.fair value through profit or loss.
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (forier Morigage Organisation Kazakhstan Mortgage Company JSC)
! Notes 1o the Finmicial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

P (¢)  Use of estimates and judgments

. ‘The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
I Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the

[ reported-amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.
i Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to-accounting

- estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
' affected.

[ Judgements

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, that sighificantly affected the
[ TN _ pp _ g _ : Y

amounts reported in the financial statements is described in the following notes:
i - key assumptions used to calculate provisions for financial guarantees — Note 23.
I - key-assumptions used to calculate provisions for contracts for securing construction projects
— Note 23,
[ - establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has

increased significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for i incorporating
i forward-looking information into measurement of ECL — Note 4.

- - initial recogaition of debt securities issned - Note 24.
[ - initial recognition of government grants - Note 21,
Assumptions and estimations uncertainty

Information about assumptions dnd estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
P in a material adjustment in the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Decernber 2019 and
' 31 December 2020 is included in‘the following notes:

i - impairment of financial instruments: determining inpuits into the ECL measurement model,
including incorporation of forward-looking information — Note 4.

- ‘impaitment of loans to customers, léng-term receivables for sales of real estate under
P instalment agreements, and finance lease receivables ~ Note 6, Note. 13, Note 14.

P - ‘estimates of fair value of financial assets and liabilities - Note 28.
(dy Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the-Kazakhstan tenge (KZT) as, being the national
% currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan, it reflects the economic substance of the mdjority of
underlying-events and circumstances relevant to thém.

{ Tenge is also the presentation currency for the purposes of these financial statements.

All financial information presented in KZT has been rounded to the nearest thonsand, except when
otherwise indicated

3 Significant accounting policies

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
i these financial statements.

(a) Foreign currency

Transactions in forelgn currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at
| éxchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are:
1 retransiated to the functional currency. at the excliange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain
B — —mﬂossnnmnetaryrtermthedrffererrc?bem‘ee_amorﬁsed‘cosf ifthé functional currency atthe -

y T and payments during ke period, and the.
; argortised cost in fore1gn currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Crganisatigir Kazakhistan Morigage Compariy JSC)
Notes 10 the Financial Statements for the yéar ended 31 December 2020

[

N Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair

i value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value

‘was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

| currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

[ Foreign currency differences arising in translation are recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

i q
Cash and cash equivalents include notes'and coins on hand, unrestricted balances {nostro accounts)

i held with the NBRK and other banks, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of
less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are

[ used by the Company the management of short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are

carried at amortised cost in the statement of finaricial position.

f (c) Imterest income and expenses

[ Effective interest rate

[ Interest income and-expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
‘effective-interest rate” is the rate that-exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts

[ through the expected life of the financial instrument to;

P . the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

' ¢ theamortised cost of the financial Lability.

| When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other ‘than purchased or

[ originated credit-impaired assets, the Company estimates. future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not. expected credit losses. For purchased or

[ ‘originated credit-impaired financial assets, a cr_cdit-_adj_usted effective interest rate is calculated
using estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses.

I

The caleulation of theeffective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or
¢ received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

i Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

I The “amoitised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the-principal repayments, plus

[ or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between

that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected
[ credit loss allowance.

. The*gross carrying amount of a financial asset’” measured at amortised cost is the amortised cost of
L a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss aflowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense —

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition
of a financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating intereést income and expense, the effective

[ mterest rate is applied to the gross carrying -amount 'qf the asset (when the asset is.not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of

i periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instrumerits to reflect movements in market
rates of interést.

| However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to inifial recognition,

| interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the

financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest iricome
; reverts-to the gross basis.

.................. _For financial assets that were credit-impaired onihitial recognition, interest-ineome-is-ealeutated by ———————-
’ ing: ive in eto-theamozti t-of
of interest income does. not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.
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l- Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Maﬂgage ‘Orgariisation Kazakhstan Mortgage Company JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, see Note 3(e)(iii).

Presentation
[ Interest income-calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income includes:
[ . interest on financial assets measured at.amortised cost;
. . interest oni debt instruments measured 4t FVOCI.
i Other interest income caption presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
‘income includes interest income from net investments in finance lease.
[ Interest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss and other compreliensive income
. ‘includes interest expense on findncia} liabilities mcasured at amortised cost.
E (d) Feesand commissions
i Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial
o asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate (see-Note 3(c)).
[ Other fee and commission income —including account sérvicing fees, investment management fees,
(- sales commission, placement fees and syndication fees - is recogmsed as the related services are
performed. If a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, then the
[ related loan commitment fee is recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.
A contract with a customer that results in a recognised financial instrament in the Company’s
[ financial statements may be partially in the scope of [FRS 9 and partially in the scope of TFRS 15.
Yy 0&p P Y
If this is the case, then the Company first-applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the
{ contract that is in the scope of IFRS 9 and then apphes IFRS 15 to the residual.
[ ‘Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are
_ expensed as the services are received.
[ (¢) Financial assets-and financial liabilities
. (i) ‘Classification
[ Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI. or
[ FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
[ not designated as at FVTPL:

[ ° the asset“is held within a business model whose objective is. to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest.on the principal amount ditstanding;

a-debt-instrument-ismeasured-at FVOCHonly if it meets botirof the foltowing conditions amd——————
is not designated as-at FVTPL;

[ - the assét is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
‘ contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

i . the contractual tefms of the financial assét give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
( solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt finaneial assets measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are recognised in other
1 comprehensive income, except for the following, which are recognised in profit or loss in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost:

| . Interest income calculated using the effective interest method:
j ° ECL and reversals; and
, . foreigh exchange gains and losses.
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‘Notes to ihe Fiancial Statentents Jor the year ended 31 December 2020

b o

. When a debt financial asset measured at FVOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss

| previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

[ All other financial assets are classified as measured at EVTPL,

In addition; on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that

i otherwise meets-the requirements to. be measured at amortised cost or at FVYOCI as at FVTPL if

= doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Business model assessment

The Company makes ati assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held
= at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business. is managed and information is
provided to management, The information considered includes:

P . the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest
I revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration.of the liabilities. that are funding these assets or realising ¢ash flows
i through the sale of the assets;
[ . bow the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

. the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held

[ within that business model). and how those risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the
[ fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash.flows collected;

- . the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such salées and its
- expectations about future sales activity. However, inforimation about sales activity is not
i cousidered in isolation, but as.part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated

objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are tealised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
P value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows
nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets:

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

[ For the purposes of this assessment, ‘ptincipal® is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recoguition. “Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit
{ risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particulat period of time and for

other basic lending risks and costs (e g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), -as well as a profit.
£ margin.

p In assessing whether the contraciual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the

Company considers the contractual terms of the instrament. This includes assessing whetherthe . ___
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual

cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company

[ considers:

[ . contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
o leverage features;
o prepayment and extension terms;:

| *  terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows fom specified assets  e.g. non-recotirse
[ asset arraﬁgements); and:

1 interest rates. i
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Kazakhstan Housing Company J8C (fortmer Mortgage Organisation Kazakhstan Mor(gage Company JSC)
Notes to.the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 Decerber 2020

Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Company changes its business mode! for managing financial assets.

Financial liabilities

The- Company classifies ifs financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
‘commitments, as measured at amortised cost.or FVTPL.

Reclassification

Financial liabilities are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.
Derecognition

Financial asséts

The Company derecognises a financial-asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows:from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the righits to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in-which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the finaricial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retaing substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it dees not retain control of the financial asset.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in other comprehensive income. in respect of equity
investment securities designated as.at FVOC] is not recogmsed in profit or loss on derecognition of
such securities, as explained in Note 3(e)(i). Any interest in fransferred financial assets that qualify
for derecognition that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

The Company ernters mto transactions whereby it transfers assets: recognised on its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets or a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. Examples.of
such transactions are securities lending and sale- and-repurchase transactions.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the’ asset, the Company
continues to recognise the asset to the éxtent ofits continuing involvement, determined by the extent
to whichi it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows.of the

modified assef are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different (referted to-
as suthantlaLdelﬁcatmn_), then the confractual rights to-cash flows. from the. original financial

asset are deemed to Have-expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised.and a new
fihancial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as
part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

*  fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
reimbursemeént of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the
asset;-and.

. other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

Changes in cash flows on existing financial assets or financial liabilities are not considered as

modification, if they result from existing contractual terms; ¢.g. changes in interest rates initiated

by the Company due to changes-in the NBRK key rate, if the loan agreement entitles the Company

to do so.
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‘"The Company performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the maodification is
substantial, i.¢. whether the ¢ash flows of thie original financial asset and the modified or replaced.
financial asset are substantially different. The Company -performs a guantitative and. qualitative
evaluation of whether the modification is substantial considering qualitative factors, quantitative
factors and combined effect of qualitative and quantitative factors. If the cash flows are
substantially different; then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset
deemed to have expired, In making this evaluation the Company analogises to the guidance on the
derecognition. of financial liabilities.

The Company concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the following qualitative
factors:

. the change in the currency of a financial asset;
- change in collateral or other credit enhancement.

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to
eriginate:a new asset with substantially different terms. If the Company plans to modify a financial
asset in a way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion
of the asset should be written off before the modification takes place (see below for write off policy).
This approach impacts the result of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derécognition
criteria are not usually met in such cases, The Company further performs qualitative evaluation of
whether the modification is substantial,

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result. in
derecognition of the financial asset, then the Company first recalculates the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset-and recognises the resulting
adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the
original efféctive interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect
current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received
as part of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortised overthe remaining term of the modified financial asset.

If such a modification is carried out because-of financial difficulties of the borrower; ther the gain
or loss is presented together with impairment losses (see Note 3(e)(iii). In-other cases, it is presented
as interest-income calculated nsing the effective interest method (see Note 3(c)).

For fixed-rate loans, where the borrower has an option to prepay the loan at par without signiﬁcant
penalty, the Company-treats the modification of an interest rate to a current market rate using the
guidance on floating-rate financial instruments. This means that the effective interest rate is adjusted
prospectively,

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a-financial liability when its terms are modified and the.cash flows of
the modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the

modified .terms is_..ifec':ognised~;at---fair--¥al-ue.—-i.13her-eLifferenee_L--betweeﬁhe—cafrying-ﬂmoum——of the-
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised i
profit or Joss. Consideration paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the
assumption of liabilities, including the new modified firiancial liability.

The Company performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is
substantial considering qualitative factors, quantitative factors and combined effect of qualitative
and guantitative factors. The Company concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of
the following qualitative factors:

» change the currency of the financial liability;

s change in collatéral or other credit enhancement;

. inclusion-of conversion-option:

s Change i the subordination of the financial liability.
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For the quantitative assesstnent the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value:
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees réceived and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.

If the maodification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised
cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective.
interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial
liabilities, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is
adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred
‘are recognised as an adjustment to the carfying amount of the liability and amortised over the
remaining term of thé modified financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the
instruiment.

Impairment

See also Note 4.

The Company recognises loss allowances. for expected credit losses on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

. financial assets that are debt instruments;
. finance lease receivables;

. financial guarantee contracts issued; and
. loan commitments issued,

No impairment lossis recognised -on equity investments.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following, for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

. debt investment securities that are defermined to have low credit risk-at the reporting date;
and

® other financial instruments on which credit tisk Has not increased significantly since their
initial recognition (see Note 4).

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from defanlt events-on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instraments for which a 12-
month ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 17 financial instruments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised are referred to
as ‘Stage 2’ financial instrumerits (if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, but the financial instriments are not credit-impaired) and “Stage 3° financial
instruments (if the financial instruments are credit-impaired).

Measurenrent of expected credit losses

I

ECL are:a probability-weighted éstimate of ¢redit losses. They are measured as follows:

o financial assets that are not credf_:-impm'red'_at:'fhe_re__zpért'in g date: as the preserit value of all
‘cash shortfalls (i.e. the differénce between the cash flows due fo the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects.to receive);

» financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

® undrawn loan comniitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are-due to the Company ifthe commitment is drawn down and the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive; and

Finaneial g:ram-n-t_ee-fomrm:tst_the*pmscn_t-vaftrH'Uf'expectéd*p'aylmmmﬁ_ré‘lfﬂbﬁéa‘f}iéf """""""""""" -

_Lm——‘he}def-}eﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬁyaiﬂﬂﬁﬂfs—fhafﬂweompau Y CXPeCts toTECOVET:

|
i

See also Note 4.
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Restructured financial assets

If the terms of'a finaricial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether
the financial asset should be derecognised (see Note-3(e)(iii)) and ECL are measured as follows:

It the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected
cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls
from the existing asset (see Note 4).

. If the expected . restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial
asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is inclided in caleulating the cash shortfalls
from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition
to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired firiancial assets.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at aniortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVOCI, and net investments in finance leases are credit-impaired
(are referred to as “Stage 3’ financial assets). A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
“have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

» significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:-

. d breach of coritract such as a defalt or past due event;

#  the restiucturing of'a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will erter bankruptoy or other finaricial
reorganisation; or

‘. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has béeen renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition s usually

considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual

cash flows has reduced significantly and there.are no other indicators.of impairment. In addition,

the retail [oans that are overdue for 90 days or more are considered credit-impaired.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statentent of financial position

Loss allowances for expected credit losses are presented in the statement of financial position as
follows:;

. financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets;

—»———loan-commitments-and financial guarantee conmractsrgenerally; as a provision:

» debt instruments measyred at fair value through other comprehensive income: no_ loss,
allowance is recognised in the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of
these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in
the fair value reserve,

Write-offs

. Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no
reasonable. expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion théreof. This
is generally the casewhen the Company determines that the borrower does not have asseéts
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject.

to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individnal asset level

LG ; _ rded it impairiient 105585 on financia
instruments’ in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
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Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in.orderto comply
with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts-due.

Investment securities

The ‘investment securities’ caption in the statement of financial position includes:

*  debt investment securities measured at amortised cost (see Note 3(e)(i)); these are initially
measured at fair value plus incremental direct. transaction costs, and subsequently at their
amortised cost using the effective interest method;

»  debt and equity investment securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL or designated as at
FVIPL (see Note 3(e)(i)); these are measured at fair value with changes recognised
immediately-in profit or loss.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method,

‘Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold under sale and repurchase (repo) agreements are accounted fot as secured financing
transactions, with the securities retained in the statement of financial position and the counterparty
liability included in -amounts payable under repo transactions within other borrowed funds. The
difference between the sale and repurchase prices represents interest expense and is recognised in.
profit or oss over the temi of the repo agreement using the effective interest method.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repo) are recorded as amounts receivable

‘under reverse repurchase agreements within cash and cash equivalénts. The difference between the
purchase and resaie prices represents interest income and is recognised in profit or logs over the
term of the repo agreement using the effective interest mettiod. If assets purchased under an
agreement to tesell are sold to third parties, the obligation fo return securities is recorded asatrading
liability and measured at fair value.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liablities: are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company curreritly has a legal right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on-a net basis of to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,
The Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set offif that right is not contingent on a
future event and enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the: event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and all counterparties.

Leases.

At inception of a contract, the entity assesses-whether a contract is, or contains, & léase. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration, To_assess whether a contract conveys the sight 16

@)

control the use of an identified asset, the. Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of'a contract that confains a lease. component, the Company
atlocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component or the basis of its relative stand-
alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease components asa single lease component.

The Company recognises a r-ig_ht-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially meadsured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement daie, plus any initial

direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to

restore the underlying asset or the site on ' which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to.the Company by the end of the lease termi or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the ri ght<of-use asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the sarhe basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset. is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if afty, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commenceiment date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
«canaiot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various
external sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments iticluded in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
~  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date; '

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

- the-exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certdin to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, and penalties for early termination of ‘a lease unless the Company is
reasonably cerfain not to terminate early. '

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is-a change in future lease payments arising from a change ifi an index or rate, if there
is a change in the Company’s. estimate of the amourit expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
of termiination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the catrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to récognisé right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the leasg payments associated with
these leases as-an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease termi. '

As a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, ‘the Company

I allocate the consideration in the contract. The Company applies the derecognition and impaitment
1 he net | » ent i helease he Con 1rthe =Thd EENEY

a_-l-l'ee__at__es—-t_'-he--e@ﬂﬁiderat-i_owimthf:;'contra‘ctto-e&dh—-lease--comptment‘Urrfhe‘“ﬁaﬁ'is of their Telafive
stand-alone prices,

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each. lease is a finanice
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers:
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is’
the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then. it is ari operating lease. As patt of this:
assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part
of the €conomic life of the asset.

If'an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Company applies IERS 15 to-

requirements in IFR

i 1 11 E1) A . Zaehlanal Ereguar
estimated unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease

= HE VS
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{ The Company recognises lease payritents réceived under operating leases as income on a straight-
Line basis over the lease term as part of *ather revenue’.

Gener_all__y, the dceounting policies applicable to the Company as a lessor in the comparative period
% wete not different from IFRS 186.

(k). Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are measuted at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of foreclosed

[ assets is based on the specific identification principle, and recorded at et book value of the
underlying loan or lease base at foreclosure date. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price

. in the: ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of compietion and selling expenses.

¢ ()  Property, plant and equipment

()  Owned assets

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accurulated dépreciation and
[ impairment losses. '

‘Where an item of property and equipment comprises major components having different nseful

{ lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment.
[ (#) Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
[ the individual assets. Depreciation. commences on the date of acquisition or, in'respect of internaily
¢ constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and ready for use, Land is not depreciated.
- The estimated useful lives are as follows:
{ - Buildings. 8-100 years;
[ - Computer equipment 2-10 years;
2 - Vehicles 5-7 years;
- Othet assets 3-20 years.

(m) Intangible assets

i Acquired intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

P Acquired computer software licenses are. capitalised on. the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. '

{ Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis-over the estimated useful lives of

g intangible assets. The estimated useful lives range from 1 year for programme softwareto 20 years
for licenses. '

i (m) Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for

both, but not for sale in normal course of business, or for the use in production. ot supply. 6£ OGS —- - —ner e e
or services or for administrative purposes. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated

dépreciation and impairment losses. '

f Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the-estimated useful lives of

_ the individual assets, Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition of the-asset. The estimated

] useful life of investment property is 60 years.

{ When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequernt accounting,

! (0)  Assets held for sale

! Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising: assets and liabilities, that are expected to be

S —— tecovered primarily through sale rather than.through continuing use;are-classified-as held-for sate.
iediatelyv before. sification. as held forsale  the acse O AATRIO £ i

1 2
11CL 2 Z s [TORSRE 0 A5018,- OF-C0Tpo “PrRaisposargroup;
are femeasured in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies. Such assets; of disposal
| group, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount-and fair value less cost to sell.
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Inventories

Inventories inciude assets to be transferred under finance lease agreements and other- inventory.
Assets to be transferred under finance lease are real estate objects acquired by the Conipany -and
transierred to the lessees once the title of ownership on objects is obtained.

Inventories are measured at the Jower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is.

based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or'conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition. In-the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is. the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion atid selling expenses. .

Impairment of non-financial assets

Other non-financial assets, -other-than deferred taxes, are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications of impairment. The'rec_(jverable- amount of non-financial assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and value in use, '

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the récoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related
CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,

All impairment losses in fespect of non-financial assets are récognised in.profit or loss and reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Any
impairment Joss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are assistance by the. Goveriment, Government agencies. and state-owned
entities in the form of transfers of resources to the Company in return for past or future compliance
with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the Company. Government grants are
oot recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions
attached to them and the grants will be received. If there are conditions that may réquire repayment.
The benefit of a government loan at a below-market tate of interest is treated as a-goveriment grant.
The benefit of the below-market rate of 1interest is measured as the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loan and the proceeds recejved.

Government grants that compensate the Company for-expenses incurred are recognised in profit or
loss as-expenses on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.

(8}

purchase of local executive bodies” bonds at'a low interest rate is recognised, and a portion of
government grant begins to be amortised within other operating expenses by the straight-line
method during 20 years from the date finished flats. are recorded on the Company’s balance sheet.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terims of a debt instrument.

Such contracts are initially recognised at fair value. After initial recognition, such contracts are

measured at the higher of the amount recognised as expected credit losses, and the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriaie, cumulative amortisation recognised

Government grapt-liability-on-financing Nurly Zher Program-will-be-utitised-as faras discount om
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(t)  Contracts for granting guarantees for construction projects

{ Contracts for granting guarantees for construction projects are aimed at guaranteeing the completion
of the construction of a residential building, its commissioning in the event of a guarantee event
{ (including bankruptey of the developer) and the transfer of sharés in the residential building to
[ equity holders. The Company views contracts for the granting of guarantees for construction
projects as insurance contracts and applied IFRS 4 Insurarice Contracts in respect of each contract
[ separately, since the main characteristic of the activity is the future event, in the occurrence of which
' there is no ¢ertainty,
{ Agreements under which the Company assumes a significant insurance risk of the other party
(hereinafter refetred to as the “insured™), agreeing fo compléte the construction of the résidential
| building upon occurrence of a warranty event and transfer of ownership shares in the residential
- building to the housing equity-holders.. Tnsurance risk is the risk other than financial risk. Financil
risk - a possible future change in one or more defined interest rates, the value of securities;,
P commodity prices, the exchange rate, the price or ifiterest rate index, the credit rating or the credit
’ index, or other variables. Insurance contracts may also transfer some financial risk.
I Insurance risk is significant if, and only if, the insurance case can lead to an obligation of the
Company to make significant additional payments. After the contract is classified as an insurarice
| contract, it remains so until all rights and obligations expire or are fulfilled.
o i) Recognition and measuvement of contracts
i Comumission on guarantee agreements (ipsirance previsiunm)
' The guarantee contract comes into force from the date of payment. of the guarantee fee. Deferred
[ revenue under a guarantee contract for.construction projects is formed under all existing contracts
for the provision of guarantees for construction projects and represent the amount of uriearned
i compensation at the seitlement date. Amortization -of commissions received is recognized as
income.

Liabilities on insurarice contracts

Obligations under insurance contracts include a reserve of incurred but niot reported losses (IBNR
i reserve) and a reserve for reported, but not settled claims (RBNS).

IBNR is formed to recognise the estimated value of losses that ocemrred, but which have not yet
[ been réported to the Company. In assessing the IBNR, the Company relies on its past experience,
adjusted for existing trends, and external factors, as well-as statistical forecasts.

Obligations under insurance contracts are terminated to be recognized when liabilities for payment
[ of losses have-exp_ired, fulfilled or been cancelled.

(i) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, the adequacy of obligations under insurance contracts is assessed using the
existing test for adequacy of liabilities. The value of liabilities is adjusted to the extent that it is
insuffi cient..io_.mcet.-ﬁlt.uraﬁomp.ensat-i_on_——paymeﬂts---a:nd-ﬁxpenses.—---'Phrr-test*us’es‘ﬂ"fe—be'st-*cunent" """"""""""""""""""""
estimates of future contractual cash flows, taking into accouiit the cost of settiement of losses and. ' '
the cost of administering the policy; as well as the investment return on the assets that provide such
[ obligations. Any inconsistency is charged to the income statement through the creation of a

provision for unexpired risks. '

(u)  Share capital
{ (i)  Ordinary shaies
I Ordinal_'_y shates. are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction foin equity, net of any tax effects.
[ (ii)  Repurchase of share capital

/ When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased. the -am‘ount of the consideration paid,
including directly attributable costs, is recognised as a dectease in equity.
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(iil) Dividends

)

(W)

(x)

The -ability of the Company to declare and pay dividends is subject to. acting legislation of the
Republic of Kazakhstan.

Dividends in relation to. ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings in the
period when they are declared.

Taxation
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.-

Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items of other
comprehensive income or transactions with sharcholders recognised directly in equity, in which
case it is recognised within other comprehensive income or directly within equity.

Current tax is calculated o the basis of estimated amount of thetaxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and the amount of the liabilifies;
‘occurred as a result of the income tax adjusiment for'the previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using balance sheet method inrespect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised in
respect of temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither accourniting nor taxable profit or loss, Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by thé reperting date.

‘The measurement of deferred tax assets and Liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are re¢ognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be. available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are redizced to the extent that it is no longer probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Segrietit reporting

An operating segmient is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses related to
transactions with other components of the Company); whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated
10 the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available,

Accounting for business combinations under common control

A merger of entities under common control is a business combination in which all of the combined

[

!

)

entities are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties, both before, and._after, the
combination, and that control 1s net transitory.

The effect of bysiness combinations under common control is accounted for by the Company using
‘pooling of interests” method, provided that the assets. aind liabilities of the merging entities are
measured at their carrying values at the date of merger, the transaction costs related to the merger
are gxpensed in the income statement, mutual balances are-eliminated from the balance sheet, any
difference between the purchase price paid/transferred and the net assets acquired (at their carrying
values as disclosed in the financial statements) is recognised in equity.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective forannual periods beginning
after 1 January 2020 and earlier application if permitted. However, the Company has not early

B —&depted—th&névroramendedstandmﬂsﬁrprepmﬁgthese fimanerat statéments.

{
§
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Interest Rate Benchniark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
I and IFRS 16)

[ The Phase 2. amendments provide practical relief from certain requirements in the standards. These
reliefs relate to modifications of financial instruments, lease contracts or hedgmg relat1onsh1ps when
[ a benchmark interest rate in a contract is replaced with a new alternative benchmark rate.

When the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial instrument is changed as a
I direct. consequence: of interest rate benchmark reform and is'made on an economically equivalent
‘basis, the Phase 2 amendments provide a'practical expedient to-update the effective inferest rate of
[ a financial instrument before applying the existing requirements in the standards. The amendments
also provide an exception to use a revised discount rate that reflects the change in interest rate when
l remeasuring a lease liability because of a lease modification that is required by interest rate
benchmark reform. Finally, the Phase 2 amendments provide a series of reliefs from certain hedge
{ accounting requirements when a change required by interest rate benchmark reform occurs to a

v hedged item: and/or hedgmg instrument and-consequently the hedge relauonshap can be continued
‘without any interruption.

I Other standards

[ The following-amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s financial statements:

. —  COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16).

5 —  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to 14S 16).
= Reference to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3).

- Classification of Liabilities as Current-or Non-current (Amendments to 145 1).

i - Onerous contracts — Cost of F ulfilling a Contract (Amendiments to I4S 37.
[ - IFRS 17 Insurance Contracis.
- 4  Financial risk review
‘This note presents information about the Com any’s exposure to financial risks. For information
f p
oon the Corripany’s financial risk management framework, see Note. 24,
[ Credit risk - Amounts arising from ECL,

5 Inputs, assumptions and techmiques used for estimating impairment

' See accounting policy in Note:3(e)(iit)).

{ Significant increase in credit risk

I When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased mgmﬁcantly
B since initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable: and. supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both- quantltatlve and qualitative

......................... information.--and--analysis.-based—on--the- Cempany s——htstortcal ‘experience—and-expett- cred1t-------*"--"Mf'--*"--""---"‘-:
assessment and including forward- -looking infortiafion.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit -tisk has
I occurred for an exposure by comparing;

[ . the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the: reporting date; with.

[ ) the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial
recognition. of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepaymient
[ expectations),

Credit risk grades

The, Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is

| determined 1o be predictive of the nisk of default and applying experienced credit judgement. Credit:
Tisk grades are defified Using qualifative and quantitative Tactors that are wdicative of risk of defauit,
| These factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.
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Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default ocourring increases
exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for exaniple, the difference in risk of default between
credit risk grades 1 and 2'is smaller-than the differerice between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated toa credit risk grade at initial recognition based on available information
about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which may result in an exposure
being moved to a different eredit risk grade. The monitoring typically involves use.of the following
data, '

Corporate exposure All exposures (corporate and retail exposures)

» Information obtained during petiodic review «of * ‘Payment record — this includes overdue
borrower files - e.g. audited finaricial statements, status;
management accounts, budgets and projections;

*  Data from credit referencé agéncies, press articles, » Requests for and granting of forbearance;
changes in external credit ratitigs; _ _

¢ Quoted bond and credit default swap (CDS) prices. ® E.xisth?g and forecast 'change.s _'in business,
for the issuer where available; ' financial and economic conditions.

e Actual ‘and expeciéd significant changes in the
political, regulatory and technological environment
of the borrower or i its business activities,

Generating the term stricture of PD

Credit risk grades are a prii'na'ry input into thie determination of the term structure of PD for
exposures. The Company collects performance and default. information about .its credit risk
exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region, type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk
grading,

For some portfolios, information purchased from external credit reference agencies is.also used.

The Company employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result of the passage
of time,

This analysis includes the identification-and calibration of relationships between changes in defanlt
rates and changes in key macro-economic factors ag well as in-depth analysis of the impact of
certain other factors (e.g. forbearance experience) on' the risk of default. For most exposures, key
‘macro-economic indicator is likely to be GDP growth.

The Company uses expert judgment in assessment of forward-looking information. This assessment
is based also on external information (see discussion below. on incorporation of forward-tooking
information). The Company then uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of PDs.

To determine the internal credit rating of a counterparty that does not have an external credit rating
assigned by the international agencies Standard & Poor's, Fitch Ratings and Moody's Investors
‘Service, the Company uses expert judgement.to determine the. rating, taking into account the

coumteparty’s specific characteristics including 10 factars such as profitabality, liquidity, leverage,
country risk, “industry charactéristics; naturé of business; concentration risk, legal regulation,
internal data and debts,

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantdly

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly. vary by portfolio and
include quantitative changes in PDs and -qualitative factors, including a: backstop based on
delinquency.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience, the Company
may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant incréase in credit risk based on
particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of such and whose effect may not-

é‘th_eswisebe-—fu}}y-feﬂcct_cd-in—itmum-tﬁaﬁveanﬁtysisrmra‘timcbfba SiS:
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As a backstop, the Company considérs that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than

o when an asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the nuniber-
of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has niot ‘been received.

i Due dates are determined without considering any ‘grace period that might be available to the

borrower:

| Definition of default

U The Company considers a. financial asset to be in default when:

[ . the counterparty is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full; or

- ° there is a delay in payments of 90 days-and more as at the reporting date;

. there is a delay in payients 0f 7 days and more on interbank claims and securities as at the
[ reporting date;

. . the financial instrument has been restructured due to the borrower’s ﬁnan’cial diff_ipu_lti_e_s,
which resulted in decrease in the net present value of the operating cash flows by 10% and
[ more;

- according to information from the publicly available information sources the counterparty is
| in the state of bankmptey;
[ ¢  the external credit rating of the financial in;st'rumentfco'untelpany' is CC- (hereinafter

‘according to the rating scales of Standard&Poor’s, Moody’s, efc.);

» at the current reporting date the Company has defaulted on another financial instriment of
[ the counterparty;

P » other: indicators which evidence the counterparty’s impaired ability to fulfil its financial
' liabilities to ‘the Company and deterioration of the. state of financial asset/increased
> probability of fulfilment by the Company of the contingent liabilities.

[ P ! P _

In assessing whether & borrower is in default, the Company considers indicators that are:

[ . qualitative —e: g. breaches of covenant;

I .

quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer
. to the Company; and

o based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is‘in default and their significance may
3 vary-over time to reflect changes in circusmistances.

Incorporating offo}wardeoking information

The__'_Company incorporates forward-looking _info'rmatic’m into both its -assessment of whether the
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recogrition and its

meas’.urement--of--EGL:—---T—he—GQm-pa_nyA--uses-_--ex-pert---’judgmem‘-in-—'“as'sess‘m‘ent""of‘fbrward?lo_o'RMg o
~ information. This assessment is based also on external information. External information may-
include economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary authorities in-
i the countries where the Company operates, such as. the Ministiy of National Econoniy of the
‘Republic of Kazakhstan, the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan and selected private.
! sector and academic forecasters. )

[ Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, inclnding changing
| market conditions and other factots.not related: to-a current or potential credit deterioration of the
borrower. An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be derécognised and the
E renegotiated loan recognised as a new loan at fair value ini accordarice with the accounting policy

i setout i Note 3(e)(iii);
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Razakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Otgam’saﬁon‘ Kazakhstdn Morrgage'_Cgmpany JSO)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

When the terms of a financial asset aré modified and the modification does not result in.
derecogriition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has. increased significantly

reflects.comparison of
. its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified térms; with

. the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the eriginal
coniractual terms.

When' modification results in derécognition, a new loan is recognised and allocated fo Stage 1

(assuming it 18 not credit-impaired at that time). The Company renegotiates loans to customers in-

financial difficulties (referred to as ‘forbearance: activities’)- to maxiniise collection opportunities
and minimise the risk of default. Undei the Company’s forbearance. policy, forbearance is granted

on 4 selective basis if the customer is currently in default on its debt or if there js a high risk of

default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the oeriginal
contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments
and amending the terms of loan ‘covénants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the
forbearance policy.

For financial assets. modified as part of the Company’s forbearance policy, the estimate of PD
reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the Company’s ability to collect interest
and principal and the Company’s previous experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this
process; the Company evaluates the borrower’s payment performance against the modified
contractual terms and considers various behavioural indicators, '

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an
expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure 15 credit-impaired (see Note
3(e)(ii1)) /in default. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good payment behaviour over a
period of time before the exposure is no longer. considered to be credit-impaired/ in default or the
PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL aré the term structure of the following variables:

. probability of default (PD);

. loss given default (LGD);

° exposure at default (EAD).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD.
Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

The methodology of estimating PDs. is discussed above under the hieading “Generating the term
structure of PR,

. The Company estimates LGD parameters  based on the history of recovery rates of claims against

defauited counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim,
counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. For
loans secured by retail property, LTV ratios are a key parameter in determining LGD,

Exposure at default represents the expected exposure in the event of a defauit. The Company derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount

allowed under the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying

amount. For lending commitments and financial guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn,
as well as potential future amounts that may be drawn under the cantract, which are estimated based
on historical observations and forward-looking forecasts.
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i' HKazakhstan Honsir_:g_ C_"c_ar_r_zpany JSC (former Mortgage Orgonisation Kazakhistin Morsgage Company JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statéments for the yéar ended 31 Pecember 2020

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for financial assets for
[ which credit risk has not significantly increased, the Company measures ECL considering the risk
of defailt over the maximum ¢ontractual period (including any borrower’s extension options) over
[ which it is exposed to crédit risk, even if, for risk.management purposes, the Company considers a
B longer period. The maximum contractual period-éxtends to the date at-which the Company has the.
i right to require repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.
P Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:
[ . credit risk gradings;

. collateral type;

*  dateof initial recognition;

[ *  remaining term to matur'it_'y;
[ . financing program.
The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particalar group
| remain appropriately homogeneous.
[ For portfolios in respect of which the Company ha‘s_lhn‘itcd historical data; external benchmark
information is used to supplement the -intemally availdble data. The portfolios. for which external
[ bengchmark information tepresents 4 significant input into measurement of ECL are as follows.
Extérnal benchmarks used
[ ‘000 KZT Exposure PD __ LGD
Cash andg cash equivalents 63,619,060 For iocal credit
[ Placements with banks and othes ' exposures
financial institutions 69,728,933 Moody’s default ~ LGD statistics is based
i Investment securities measured at study Probability of -on recovery after
N -amortised cost 917,887,952 default model defaults of banks and
l financial institutions in
Otlier financia) assets 24,588 Kazakhstan

5 Netinterest income

! 2020 2019
r | ‘000 KZT ‘000 KZT
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
[ method '
Financial assets measured at amortised cost _
i Investment Securities measured at amortised cost _ 38,061,990 2,137,620
o Loans to customers and long-term receivables from the sale of
real estate in instalments
. . 10,808,226 6,145,347
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 2,389,114 1,209,255
Casli and cash equivalents 555,453 412,375
[ Other assots 169,208 181,257
53,266,655 11,308,769
! Other interest income ' '
Finance lease receivables _ 10,981,807 8,804,157
{ Investment securities measured at fair value through profit or o
loss 235,921 273,052
| 11,217,728 9,077,209
Interest expense __
| Diebt seourities issued (32:276,294) (5,662,460)
; Qther harrowed funds (8:609:473) (2:276,541)
! (40,285,767 ——(7,939,001)—
) Net interest income 24,198,616 12,446,977
]
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l . Hazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation Kazakhstan Meortgage Company JSC)
Notes fo the Financial Statements for.the year ended 31 December 2020

{
Interest income. on finance lease receivables for the period ended 31 December 2020 comprises
I amortisation of government grants of KZT 5,776,796 thousand (2019: KZT 4,074,156 thousand)
= {Note 21).
- 6  (Losses)/income on impairment of debt financial instruments
2020 2019
I _ _ ‘000 KZT _ ‘000 KZT
Loans to customers and leng-tenn receivables from the sale of- _
P real estate in ‘instalments (Note 15) (6,744,798) 207,210
Finance lease. recewables {Note 16) (1,101,053) (183,789)
i Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) 13,540, 139,339
Placements with banks and other financial institutions {Note 13) (33,883) 68,117
[ Investment securities measured at amortised cost (Note 14) 849,142 (20,447)
Other assets {23,666) 581,795
[ (7,040,718) 882,225
[ 7 Netinsurance premiums earned
_ 2020 2019
[ ‘000 KZT __ *000 KZT
Fees under financial guarantee contracts for completion of
I ‘construction (insurancé premium) 297,364 -
Financial guarantee fees 117 -
[ 297,481 -
[ Fees under financial guarantee contracts for completion of construction recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2020 arise from amortisation of fees received under ‘guarantees related to
[ construction companies, which are accounted for under TIERS 4 Insurance Coniracts.
[ 8  Other operating income/(expénse)
i 2020 2019
‘008 KZT ‘000 KZT
r Loss on recognition of initial discount.on acquired long-term -
securities (Nofe 14) _ _ {173,672,899) -
5 Income on use of government grants (Note 21) 177,661,633 -
Net loss arising from derecognition of financial assets measured
at amortised cost (27,967) {42,594)
[ Investment property lease expenses (315,619) 13,043
§ Investment property-lease income. 378,560 .
I Net loss related to real estate operation (85,606) (372,642)
Qther income 43,925 95286
3,982,027 (306,907)

During the report:mg year the Company. purchased local goveniment bonds in the amount of

......................... -KZT.23,232,554 thousand-with-matirity-in-2022- {Note-14).-On-initial-recognition;-the- difference G

' _ between the fair value and the acquisition cost in the form of discount amounted fo. '
KZT 3,927,826 thousand, which was compensated by the use of government grant ini the equivalent

{ amout. This discount and related grant are not included in the turmover in the table above.

] 9  Personnel expenses

_ 2020 2019

l ‘000 KZT 000 KZT
Employee compensation 1,673,624 1,385,634

I Salary related taxes 192,314 142,661

| 1,865,938 1,528,295
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation Kazaldstan Morigage Company JSC)
Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year énded 31 Decembé_r 2020

10 General and administrative expenses

11

2020 2019
‘000 KZT “000 KZT
‘Repair and maintenance of property, plant and equlpment and
intangible assets "374,537 196,164
Outsourcing expenses 239,921 137,970
Depreciation and amortisation 217,831 275,432
Social program expenses 205,792 179,828
Advertising and marketing 110,419 150,872,
‘Consulting services 30,342 31,124
Rating assignment/supervision/maintenatice expenses 45,657 36,995
Taxes other than income tax 69,884 83,047
Communication services 42,021 35420
Auditor's fee 41,696 26,120
Transportation services 38,675 31,272
Business travel 25,372 37,200
Rent. 24,490 19,058
Board of Directors expenses 19,196 20,553
Security 12,822 14,125
Informatién sérvices 10,361 18,392
Supplies 10,920 19,936
Stationery and printing 8,148 2,183
Employee training and advanced training --external 6,380 21,934
Health and safety costs’ 2,678 -
State-Center for Pension Payments® services expenses. 2,207 1,934
Iasurance expenses ' - 539 518
Other 236,784 56,964
1,776,670 1,397,141

Income tax expense

2020 2019

*000 KZT . ‘000 KZT

Current year fax expetise - {(1,058,141)
Underprovided in prior years 7.787 (2,827)
Movement in deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities due to
origination and reversal of teniporary differences and _ _
movement in valustion allowance {(2,201,883) (266,377)
Total incomé tax expense (2,194,096) (1,327,345)

In 2020, the applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax was 20%. (2019: 20%).

Reconciliation of effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December:

2020 2019
_ SBO0KZT % D00 KZT ... %
~ Profit before Income tax .. o B25774 1000 . 9919111 . 100
Income tax at the apphcablc tax rate (1,649,155) 20 (1,983,822) {20)
E‘ Non-taxable interest income on securities 1,805,172 22 482,130 5
i {Non-deductible impairment losses)/nori-taxabile
income on reversal of allowance {2,624,181) (32) 117,003 1
{ Other non-deductible expenses (35,887) - (74,9813 (1)
Accrual of unrecognised. deferred tax assets as a
‘ tesult-of business combination 366,332 4 - -
Change in deferred tax asset for the previous year (64,164) D 135,152 1
Underprovided in prior years 7,787 - (2.827) 2
i {2;194,096) £7—(1327,345) ()
|
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! Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (forner Morgnge Orgatiisation Kazakhstan Morigage Company JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statemerits for the year ended 31 December 2020
| Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting
[ purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes give rise. to deferred tax assets as at
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, respectively.
{ Deferred tax assets and liabilities:
i Movements in temporary differences for the year ended 31 December 2020 are presented as
. follows:
‘ _ Recognised as a
I Recognised in result of . )
1 January profit business 31 December
F ‘000 KZT 2020 ) or-loss combination 2020 .
Property, plant and equipment (7,262) 173,432 (323,746 (157,576)
I Non-citrrent assets held for sale. - (9,699) 172,911 163,212
= Placen?ant_s-wi_ﬂ_l banks and other o _ o
financial institutions 49,973 (215,966) 1,738,665 1,572,472
P Investment securities . 31,263,894 24,061,739 55,325,633
Accounts receivables from
- instalment sales - {200,820) 4,401,097 4,200,277
Other assets. 66,921 (33,553). 33,368
I' Loans issued 70,367 (298,099) 1,102,440 874,708
i Other borrowed funds (21,638,466) 1,669,098  (37,369,567)  (57,338.935)
- Government grants 19,610,426 (1,909,876)  20,237.707 37,938,257
( ‘Bonds issuéd (62439) (32,685,560  (21,059,880) (53,807,879
Fr ‘Other labilities 40,011 45,266 12411 | 97,688
Tax loss carry-forwards. 370,994 - - 370,994
[ (1,499,675) (2:201,883)  (7,026,223)  (10,727,781)
[ Unrecognised deferred tax asset (370,994) - - (370,094)
o (1,870,669) {2,201,883) (7.026,223)  (11,098,775)
' Movements in temporary differences for the yearended 31 December 2019 are presented as follows.
‘ _ _ 1 January. Recognisedin 31 Decémber
[ ‘000 KZT 2019 profit or loss 2019
Property, plant and equipment (76,183} 68,921 (7,262)
| Other assets 19,357 47,564 66,921
. Loans issued 41,580 -28,787 70,367
l_ N Placemients - 49,773 49,773
Other borrowed funds (22,052,229 413,763 (21,638,466)
Governthetit graits TTR0,425 357 (814,831) 19,610,426
[ Other liabilities 37,926 2,085. 40,011
Tax loss carry-forwards 370,994 370,994
‘ (1,233,208) @66371)  (1,499,675)
] Unrecognised deferred tax asset (370,994) - {370,994)
(1,604,202) (266,377)- (1,870,669)
|
I
!
1
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Kazqkhsfan Housing Conipany JSC (forner Morigage Organisation Kazakhstar Morigage Company JSC)

Notes 10 the Financigl Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Cash and cash equivalents

000 KZT

31 December 2020

12-month  Lifetime ECL of Lifetime ECL
expected credit  assets not for credit-
losses (ECL)  credit-impaired impaired assets Total

Nostro accounts with the NBRK. 19,698,384 - - 19,698,384
Nostrg accounts with other banks

rated BBB- 14,229 684 - . 14,229,684
rated BBB+ 821,296 . - 821,296
rated BB+ 15,408 - - 15,408
rated BB- 1,518 - - 1.518
Tated B+ 1,043 - - 1,043
rated B. 26,434 - - 26,434
rated B- 40 - - 40
not rated - . 2,028,884 2,028,884
Total Nbst_ro-'acc‘punts’ with banks _

‘before impairment allowance 34,793,807 - 2,028,884 36,322,691
Loss allowance (30,543) . {2,028,884) (2,059,427)
Reverse repurchase agreements

Rated from BBB- to BBB+ 28,855,796 - - 28,855,796
Total cash and cash equivalents 63,619,060 - - 63,619,060
000 KZT 31 Deécember 2019

12-month  Lifetime ECL of Lifetimie ECL
expected credit ‘assefs not: ~ for eredit-
losses (ECL).  credit-impaired impaired assets Total

Nostro accounts with the NBRK 437,861. - - 437,861
Nostre accounts with other banks

rated BBB- 2,824,961 - = 2,824,961
rated BBB+ 750,132 - - 750,132
tated BB+ 83,029 - = 83,029
rated BB- 19,116 - - 19,116
rated B+ 386 - - 386
rated B 27,565 - . 27,565
rated B- 5,443 - - 5,443

IO 15135 (s O U UR . oo 2,066,083 2;066.085
. Total Nostro accounts with banks . ... . . L e e e

before impairment allowance- 4,148,493 - 2,066,083 6,214,576,
Loss allowancé (6,804) . (2,066,083) (2,072,887)
Reverse repurchase agreemerits
Tated from AAA-to AAA+ 4,206,527 - - 4,206,527
rated from BBB- to BBB+ 24,386,907 - - 24,386,907
Total cash and cash equivalents 32,735,123 - - 32,735,123

The credit ratings are presented by reference to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor’s rating agency

oranalogues of similar international rating agencies.
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Kazakistan Housing Company JSC (fornier Morigage Organisation K azakhstan Mor_rgqge Company JS_C)
Nates to'the Financial Statenients for the year ended 31 December 2020

On 27 December 2016 the NBRK revoked the licence of Kazinvestbank JSC (KIB) citing its
repeated failures to fulfil its payment operation liabilities. As at 31 December 2020 the Company
considers the nostro account held with KIB for the total amount of KZT 2,066,083 thousand fully
impaired as based on its understanding of the KIB’s current position and credit risk (31 December

2019: KZT 2,066,083 thousand),

Asat 31 December 2020 the Company has no banks (2019; rio banks), whose balances exceed 10%
of equity (31 December 2019: KZT 0).

In 2020, the Company entéred into reverse repurchase -agrecments with counterparties at
Kazakhstan Stock Exchange (KASE). These transactions. are collateralised with the treasury bills
of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstar, Burasian Developrient Bank, and
Kazakhstan Sustainability Fund JSC (Baspana Mortgage Organisation JSC) and with notes of the
NBRK: and International. Fitiance Corporation (IEC). As at 31 December 2020 the fair value of
financial assets collateralising reverse repurchase agreémients is KZT 28,973,393 thousand
(31 December 2019: KZT 29,653,837 thousand).

Analysis of movements in loss allowance

000 KZT Year ended 31 December 2020

12-month  Lifetime ECL of Lifetime ECL
expected credit  assets not for credit-
losses (ECL) credit-impaired impaired assets Total
‘Balance at 1 January ‘6,804 - 2,066,083 2,072,887
Net recovery of loss allowance 23,659 - (37,199) (13,540)
Foreign exchange and other
moverments 80 - - 80
Balance at the end.of the peried 30,543 - 2,028,884 2,059,427
‘000 KZT Year endéd 31 Decembeér 2019
12-month  Lifetime ECL of Lifetime ECL for
expected credit assets nof: credit-impaired
losses (ECL)  credit-impaired -assets Total
Balance at 1 Janyary 101,368 - 2,110,916 2,212,284
Net recovery of loss allowance (94,506). - (44,833} (139,339}
Foreign exchange and othér _
movements (58) - - (58)
Impairment dllowance as at the end N o _
of the period 6,804 . 2,066,083 2,072,887
13 Placements with banks and other financial institutions
‘000 KZT Year ended 31 December 2020
[, en oot e bt e 4o ot et lz“month“‘MLifEﬁmeECII'Of“‘L‘ifEﬁmBECI_}
...  Cxpectedcredit  assetsmot foreredit-
- Current accounts with other banks:  losses (ECL) credit-impaired impaired assets Total
rated BBB+ 23,191,137 - - 23,191,137
-rated BBB- 16,020,245 - - 16,020,245
rated BB+ 30,689,567 - - 30,689,567
rated BB~ - . 143,473 143,473
69,900,949 - 143,473 ?0,044_,‘42'2-
Impairment allowance {172,016) - (143,473) (315,489)
Impairment allowance as at the end
of the period 09,728,933 - - 69,728,933
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Kagakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation Kazakhstan Morigage Company JSC)
Nates to the Financial Statements for theé year ended 31 Deceniber 202¢

31 Décember
2019
12-month expécted
‘000 KZT _ciredit losses (ECL)
rated BBB+ 564,716
tated BBB-
rated BB+ 1,452,694
rated BB- -
2,017,410
Loss allowance (3,782)
Total placements with banks and other financial institutions 2,013,628

The credit ratings are presented by reference to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor’s rating agency
or analogues of similar international rating agencies.

None of the balances of placements are-past due.

Asat 31 December 2020 the Company placed termi deposits with annual interest rates of 8.50% and
9.00% (2019: 8.50%, 8.60% and 9.00%), which have maturities in March and Deceniber 2021
(2019: January, February and September 2020).

Increase in placemerits with banks and other financial institutions as at 31 December 2020 resulted
from the merge of the Company with HCGF ISC and BD J SC, the assets and Habilities of which
‘were transferred under the certificates of ownership and merger.

The amount of unamortised discount recognised with réspect to amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions placed at the befow-market interest rates as at 31 December 2020 was
KZT 7,862,359 thousand. The amount inclnded in interest income from due from banks and other
financial institutions was KZT 683,158 thousand.

Analysis of movements in loss allowance-

2620 2019
12-month expécted credit losses (ECL) 000 KZT ‘000 KZT
Balance at T January (3,782) (71,899)
Net reversal /charge of impairment allowance 64,438 71,899
New financial assets originated or purchased (98,321) (3,782)
New financial assets originated or purchased as a result of the
merge (277,824) -
Impairment allowance-as at the end of the period (315,489) (3,782)

_Investment__securit.ies ______________ e et e eF L 2 b1 < 2o 4Pt e 58 ket o £ e e bt bt b £k e ki ek e oot
i Decembe T M peiie
‘B00 KZT 2020 2019
Investment securities measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Corporate bonds rated from B- to B+ 1,978,486 1,785,702
Corporate bonds not rated 953,553 933,590
2,932,035 2,719,292
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Kazakhstan Housing Covpany JSC (former Mortgage Organisation “Kazakhstan Mbrtgage Company? JSC)’
| Notes'to the Finantcial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

{ _ 31 December 2020
12-menth Lifetimé¢ ECL of Lifetinie ECL for
[ o expected credit assets not credit-  credit-imipaired
‘OKZT losses (ECL) impaired -assets Total
[ Investmeént securities measured at
‘amortised cost _
[ Treasury bills-of the Ministry of Finance
of the Republic of Kazakhstan _ 1,487,309 - - 1,487,309
i Notes of the National Bank of the RK 45,452,372 - - 45452372
Corporate bonds of Fineraft Group LLP - - - 68,519,028
E ' rated ‘B? _ '
Corporate bonds issued by second-tier _
pe banks rated ‘B’ o 10,983,015 68,519,028 - 10,983,015
Bonds of lgcal executive bodies (LEB) 793,148,574 - < 793,148,574
P Corporate bonds not rated _ - - 2,102,726 2,1{_}:2','726
851,071,270 68,519,028 2,102,726 921,693,024
[ Loss allowance: _{1,702,346) - (2:1 02_,'72'6_) '(3,805_,072)
- Carrying amount 849,368,924 68,519,028 - 917,887,952
! 31 Deecember 2019
[ 12-month Lifetime ECL on  Lifefime ECL on
expected credit -assets not credit- assets credit-
= WO KZT losses (ECL) inmipaired impaired Total
Investment securities measured at
amortised cost
l Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance
~ of the Républic of Kazakhstan 1,494,714 - - 1,494,714
[ Notes of the National Bark of the RK 7.457,807 - - 7,457,807
Corporate borids rated from B+ to B- 10,988,970 - - 10,988,970
[ ~not rated - - 2,102,726 2,102,726
19,941,491 - 2,102,726 22,044,217
[ Loss allowance (23,296) - (2,102,728) (2,126,022)
Carrying amount 19,918,195 - - 19,918,195
[ The credit ratings are presented by reference to the tredit ratings of Standard & Poor’s rating agency
s or analogues of similar international rating agencies.
In accordance with the certificate of ownership and merger of 30 July 2020, as a result of the merger
[ of DB JSC aid the Company, the Company recognised on the balance sheet investment securities
' measured ‘at  amortised cost, transferred from DB. JSC  of carrying amount of
[ KZT 556,349,483 thousand. These securities comprised bonds issued by the local executive bodies
and Fincraft Group LLP. The bonds issued by the local executive bodies were accepted at the price
f of KZT 1,000 per unit, in the amount of 581,915,804 thousand; discount was
KZT 117,770,171 thousand, calculated using: annual market interest rates varying from 8.67% to.
f 13.99%. The bonds issued by Fincraft Group LLP wete transferred in the numbet of 65,000,000

with carrying amount of KZT 65,150,763 thousand. On 24 Decermber 2020 the issuer Fincraft
Group LLP made a decision on partial repurchase. of bonds, and on 5 Januwary 2021 bonds of
e KZT62,301,927 thousand were repurchased partially by the jssiier. —— —

~ Once Fineraft Group"LLP has sold “thé part of its bioiids in thie organised securities market: TSTN:

- (Z2P00006190, consisting of 25,000,000 bonds of nominal value of KZT 25,000,000 thousand and
ISIN:  KZ2D00005949 consisting of 36,080,240 bonds of nominal value of
i KZT 36,080,240 thousand, the rest of the bonds in the Company's. pottfolio continue to be.
categorised into Stage 2, based on the Methodology for estimate-of provisions, under which an asset
| is.to be transferred from Stage 1 to Stage 2 upon expiry.of a six<month rehabilitation period, during

which there were not any indication that the credit risk of the counteragent had increased
] significantly,

| In accordancé wit_h the certificate of ownership and merger-of 16 Novemiber 2020, as a result of the
merger with HCGF JSC, the Company recognised on the balance sheet investment securities _
i 1_uc_asured;'““at"'amortised‘“to*st;-‘Wﬁs‘f’éﬁ‘é‘c‘l?‘_fr_om‘_HC_GF “JSCof camrying amount of _
—KZT-26;90¢; ard; urities comprised the notes of the National Bank of the

| Republic of Kazakhstan.
40
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Kazakhstuit Housing Company JSC (former Mortgage Organisation “Kazakhstan Morigige Company” JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the.year ended 31 December 2020

During the reporting year, the Company acquired 477,086,148 bonds of the local executive bodies
at a price of KZT 1,000 per bond, which mature in the years of 2031 and 2032. The bond coupon
rate is 6.10% p.a. The bonds were recognised at the fair value of KZT 303,413,250 thousand; a
discount on initial recognition was KZT 173,672,898 thousand caleulated using market. interest.
rates ranging from 11.41% to 12.45% p.a.

During the reporting year, the Company acquired 23,232,554 bonds of the local execiitive bodies
at a price of KZT 1,000 per bond, which mature in the vear of 2022. The bond coupon rate is 0.35%
p.a. The bonds were recognised at the fair value of KZT 19,304,728 thousand; a discount was
KZT 3,927,826 thousand calculated using market interest rates ranging from 9.93% to 10.56% p.a.

During the reporting year ended31 December 2020, the local executive bodies redeemed bonds of
KZT 27,689,092 thousand in total. The discount recalculated following the early partial rédempfion
of bonds by the local executive bodies was KZT 200,474 thousand.

Loss in'the form of a discount of KZT 181 »989,459- thousand on the difference between the nominal
and fair values was offset by decreasing the liability on govemment grant that 'was obtained for
purchiasing these bonds, inthe amount of KZT 185,533,819 thousand (Note 21).

Corporate bonds are interest-bearing securities, issued by local companies and banks. These

‘securities are freely tradable on Kazakhstan Stack Exchange (“KASE™), except for the bonds of

Kazakhstan Kagazy JSC (“KK™) and “Corporation “APK Invest” LLC (“APK™) of gross value of
KZT 1,117,796 thousand and KZT 984,930 thousand, respectively (31 December 2019; bonds of
KK and APK of gross value of KZT 1,117,796 thousand and KZT 984,930 thousand, respectively).
Bonds of KK and APK were delisted on KASE on 13 November 2015 and 4 July 2017, respectively.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019 the Company considers bonds fully impaired, as the Company
believes, based on its assessment of the issuers’ financial position, that future cash flows are no
longer expected to oceur on these assets.

Analysis of movements in loss allowance

For the year ended 31 December 2020
12-month  Lifetime ECL
expected eredit  on eredit- _
losses (ECL) impaired-assets 000 KZT

Balance at I January 23,296 2,102,726 2,126,022
Net remeasurement.of loss allowance (10,611) - (10,611)
New financjal assets originated orpurchased {838,531) = (838,531)
New financial assets originated or purchased as 4

result of the merge ' 2,528.192 - 2,528,192
Impairment allowance as at the end of the period 1,702,346 2,102,726 3,805,072

For the year ended 31 December 2019
12-menth  Lifetime ECL
expected credit  on credit-
losses (ECL) impaired assets ‘000 KZT

................................. Balanceat 1.J anuary-ﬁ o e I 2,849 2, } 02,,_:?:2 6 _.2?.1 0 5; 395
Netremeasurementof lossallowance v (I191Y . U9 LT
_ ~ New financial assets originated or purchased 20,638 - 20,638
[ Impairment allowance as at the end of the period. 23,296 2,102,726 2,126,022
[ 15 Loans to customers and long-term receivables from sales of property
E under instalment agreements
, Loans to customers comp‘ri'se-_mortg_'a'g_e loans purchased from commercial banks and credit
t institutions' of the Republic of Kazakhstan and mortgage loans issued to individuals. The loan
: portfolio comprises KZT- and USD-deniominated mortgage loans extended {o individuals, citizens
of the Republic of Kazakhstan..
f
[
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{ Kazakhstart Honsing Coinpany JSC (former Mortgage Organisation “Kazakhstan Morigage Company” JSC)
' Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2020

[
2029 2019

l 000 KZT ‘000 KZT
¢ Loan from Yelorda Kurylys Conipaniyasy LLP 36,053,386 -

Long-term receivables from sale of property to legal entities
- under instalment agreements ' 31,601,023 -
Total loans and long-term receivables from.sale of property
[ to legal entities under instalment agreements. 67,654,409 -
" Mortgage loans to individuals 67,815,513 66,981,591
Long-term receivables from sale of property to individials
| under instalment agreements 13,429,666 -
I Total mortgage loans and long-term recejvables _fi'om sale

of property to individuals under instalment agreements 81,245,179 66,981,591
a 148,899,588 66,981,591
) Loans to customers and long-term receivables from sale of
f property under instalment agreements, net of impairment
¢ -allowance 135,292,670 62,663,247

_ During the year ended 31 December 2020 the Company has not acquired -any mortgage loan
[ portfolios (2019: acquired mortgage loan portfolios from two commercial banks amounting to
KZT 23,746,429 thousand).

t In aceordance with the certificate of transfer dat_'c_d 30 July '2020,_ the carrying amount of the target

[ loan extended under the. agreement between Yelorda Kurylys Companiyasy LLP and City
Administration of Nur-Sultan city on-allocation of funds from the National Fund of the Republic

[ of Kazakhstan, was transferred in the amount of KZT 34,759,329 thousand.

} a Credit quality of mortgage loans and long-teim receivables from. sale of property to

f q ol mortgag g propert
individuals under instalment agreements

The following table provides information on the credit quality of mortgage loans to customers as
Sae £ 1a0ic provides inior Yy gag

at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019+

[ 31 December 2020,

f ' S _ Acquired assefs

_ 12-nionth Lifetime ECL of  Lifetime ECL for credit-impaired

[ expected credit  assets not credit-  credit-impaired on initial
‘000 KZT losses (ECL) impaired assets recognition Total

[ - not overdue 64,623,435 2,632,082 4,576,212 131,903 71,963,632

- bverdue up to 30.days 2,568,635 479,930 545,513 3,949 3,598,027

~overdue 30-89days i 996,112, TS0 b 58 L BER TP
- overdue 180-360.days - - 816,450 11,276 827,726
- overdue more than 360 _ _

{ days - - 2,666,995 4,286 2,671,281

67,192,070 4,108,124 9,756,089 188,896 ‘81,245,179
[- Loss allowance (3,938,914) (473,743) (3.970,716) (188,896) {8,572,269)
| Carrying amount 63,253,156 3,634,381 5,785,373 - 72,672,910
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{ Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kazakistan-Mortgage Coinpany” JSC)
Noies o the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Peceinber 2020
[
31 December 2019
[ _ Acquired assets
i I2-moath  LifetimeECE on  Lifétime ECL on credit-impaired
[ expected credit  assets not credit-  credit-impairéd on initial
’ 000 KZT losses (ECL) impaired assets recognition, Total
- - not overdue 58,132,344 667,173 1,306,676 144,605 60,250,798
i - overdue up to-30 days 1,796,065 - 235,443 1475 2,022,983
- overdue 30-89 days - 8'4?,'34'-5 158_‘,023 4,359 1,009,727
- - overdue 90-179 days - - 554,486 1,257 555,743
- overdue 180-360 days - - 70,793 - 70,793
[ - overdue more than 360 o
days - - 3,071,547 - 3,071,547
r 59,028,409 1,514,518 5,386,968 151,696 "66,:981,591
- Loss allowance {614,135) (209,234} (3,343,279) (151,696) (4,318,344).
! i : :
Carrying amount 59,314,274 1,305,284 2,043,689 - 62,663,247

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of loans with the selier’s full- and partial-recourse
[~ option were KZT 10,842,108 thousand and KZT 436,972 thousand, respectively (31 Deécember
2019: KZT 23,668,110 thousand and KZT 5,661,955 thousand,. respectively).

P In accordance with partial-recourse agreements, the recourse option does not exceed 20% of the
total principal amount of mortgage loans at the date of purchase of those Toans.
[ p 2ag !
_ (b) Analysis of movements in loss allowance for mortgage loans and long-term receivables from
- sale of property to individuals under instalment agreements
pert, £
[ Movements in the loss allowance are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2020
[ Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
[ 12-month  on assetsnot:  on credit-
expected credit  credit- impaired Total
I losses (ECL)  impaired assets POCT “000 KZT
Balance at the beginning
of the period 614,136 209,234 3,343,279 151,696 4318,345
Transfer to-Stage 1 71,437 (23,371) (48,066) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (28,029) 31,498 (3,469) - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (81,903) (74.273) 156,176 - -
Net remeasurement of ) _
loss.allowance 2,679,936 {118,365) 532,824 {358) 3,094,037
New financial assets.
-originated or purchased. 1,155,880 - - 37,220 1,193,100
Orig]‘natedasaresultof ,..‘_ ........ T . ,.. ................ rei e e
o ...the merger with BDLJSC.. . ... . b e e
(Note 27) 3,834 9,442 38,035 - 51,311
Transfersof new
originated loans to other o _
stages (476,712) 439,672 37,040 - -
Write-off - - (127,011) - (127,011)
Unwinding of discount/ _
‘othier changes 335 {94) 41,908 338 42,487
Balance at the end of _ _
the period 3,938,914 473,743 3,976,716 188,896 8,572,269
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Orgmi'sqh‘on “Kazakhstan Morigage Company” JSC)
‘Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year erded 31 Decenber 2020

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

i2-month  on assets not  on credit-
expected credit  credit- impaired ~ Total
losses (ECL)  impaired assets. POCI SO0 KZT

Balance at the beginning

of the period 651,134 59,750 3,975,827 - 4,686,711
Transfer to.Stage 1 5,187 (2,590) (2,597) - .
Trarisfer to. Stage 2 (32,783) 54,971 (22,188) - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (7,801) (8,489) 16,290 - -
Net remedsurement of _ o _

loss:allowarice (393,262) 99,177 (564,589) - '(8'58,674:_)
New financial assets _

origitiated or purchased 409,768 - - 151,696 561,464
Transfers of hew

originated loans to other N _ _

stages (18,054) 6,203 11,851 - -
Write-off ‘ - {159,047y - (159;047)
‘Foreign currency _ N
translation differences 534 - - - (54)
Unwinding of discount - 212 87,732 - 87,944
Balance at the end of _ _
the period 614,135, 209,234 3,343,279 151,696  4,318;344

The significant changes in the gross carrying amount of the'mortgage portfolio and long-term
receivables from sale of property to individuals under instalment agreements are further

explained below:
2020
‘000 KZT Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3. POCI Total
Loans to customers.
Balance at 1 January 59928409 1,514,518 5386968 151,696 66,981,591
Transfer to Stage 1 772,398 (466,534) (305,864) . -
Transfer to Stage 2 (2,;_068','3_25) 2,117.134 (48,809) - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (4,213,832)  (458,095) 4,671,927 - -
New financial assets _ _
originated or purchased 16,793,033 - - 37,839 16,830,892
Originated as a result of the:
oocmergerwith BDISC (Note N
A DS dsams o ST - 13764056
ranetors cFen omne”
originated or purchiased o
‘between stages (802,637) 327,786 474,851 - -
Repaymerits (early or partial ) _
repayment) (15,293,088)  (379,340)  (700,631) (997) (16,374,056)
Unwinding of discount 344 (94) 41,908 338 42,496
Balance.at 31 December 67,192,070 4,108,124 9,756,1:]8'_9 188,896 81,245,179
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Marigage Organiisation “Kazakhstar Mortgage Compmiy” JSC).
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Deceniber 2020

2019
‘000 KZT Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Leans to castomers
Balanoe at 1 January 40,221,881 572,732 6,958,661 - 47,753,274
Transfer to Stage 490,162 (228,644)  (261,518) - -
“Transfer to Stage 2 1,034,144y 1,177,677 {143,533y - -
‘Transfer to Stage 3 (343,167) (70,232) 261,703 151,696 .
New financial assets
{ originated or purchased 32,563,048 - - 32,563,048
Transfers of new originated
loans to other stages (590.,555) 261,326 329,229: - -
Repayments (early or partial -
repaymet) (11,378816)  (198,553)  (1,686,259) - (13,263,628)
Write-offs - - (159,047) - (159,047)
Unwinding of discount - 212 87,732 . 87,944
I Balance at 31 December 59,928,409 1,514,518 5,386,968 151,69 66,981,591
() Analysis of collateral of mortgage loans and long-term receivables from sale of property to
individuals under instalment agreements
[ Mortgage loans are secured by the underlying housing real estate,
[ For loans- with the seller’s recourse option, the commercial banks-partners are responsible for
monitoring of collateral .on a periodic. basis according to the requirements of the NBRK. The
[ recoverability of these loans is primarily dependent on the creditworthiness of the commercial
banks-pariners rather than the value of collateral, and the current value-of the collateral has lesser
i impact on the impairment assessment. '
f The following tables provide information ‘on the fair value of collateral securing mortgage loans
N (net of inipairment allowarice):
l’ . Fair value of
[ Fair value of 'collat'er‘al:_ for
collateral: collateral
¢ Car.__l_‘yill_g for cpllatera’l assessed as _(_)t_‘ Fair vatue of
‘000 KZT amount of loans  assessed asof  loan inception celiateral not
I 31 December 2020 to customers  reporting date date. determined
Not overdue loans 66,867,046 60,941,514 2,394,154 3,531,378
| Overdue loans 5,805,864 2,.{488',519' 1,160,607 2,156,738
72,672,910 63,430,033 3,554,761 5,688,116
31 December 2019
Not-overdue loans 59,181,074 35,362,320 44,997 23,773,832
Overdue loans 3,482,173 2,785,484 - 696680
Lo 62,663,247 . 38147804 . 44972 24470,521 -

The tablesabove exclude bvei‘collateralisation.

The Company updates the appraised values of collateral obtdined at inception of the loan to the
present value considering the approximate changes in property. values: The Company may also
obtain a specific individual valuation of collatéral at each reporting date where:there are indications

of impairment.

Repossessed collateral

The Company obtains certaini assets by taking possession.of collateral for loans fo retail customers.
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of such assets was KZT 222,755 thousand (2019:

KZT 606,257 thousand)

“The-Company’s policy is to sellthese asseis within a very short timie.
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kazakhstan Morigage Company” JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year-ended 31 December. 2020

Credit quality of loans to customers and long-term receivables from sale of property to legal
entities under instalment agreements

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total

Loans issued

‘Yelorda Kurylys Companiyasy LLP*

~ internally rated CCC 36,053,386 - - 36,083,380
Receivibles under instalment

agreements

Mega Plaza LLP - internally rated _

cCce - 27,245,018 - 27,245,018
Long-term receivables from'sale

of apartments located on the.

grounds of ISE EXPO-2017

Association of Legal Entities

“Combat and Strength' Sports

Confederation” - internally rated

BBB 1,373,619 - - 1,375,619
Astana IT University LLP -

internally rated €CC 2,479,006 . 2,479,006
The non-profit organisation Omit

Fund- internally rated D - - 501,380 501,380
‘Total Joans issued and receivables

from sale of property under _

mstalment agreements 39,908,011 27,245,018 501,380 67,654,409

‘Loss allowarice (2,553,827) (2,261,569) (219.253)  (5,034,649)

37,354,184 24,983,449 282,127 62,619,760

During the period from the date of merge of BD-JSC and the Company to 31 December 2020, Mega
Plaza LLP repaid principal and interest of KZT 1,357,077 thousand. During 2020, prior to the-date
of merge with BD JSC, Mega Plaza LLPcompleted two (2) tranches of KZT 1,500, 000 thousand
of early repayment of th_e loan principal amount and two (2) tranches of KZT 1,250,000 thousand
of repayment according to debt repayment schedule.

During the year, for the loan issued to Mega Plaza LLP, a 1-year grace period was granted for

repayment of interest of KZT 578,318 thousand due to the restrictions brought about by coronavirus
'which limited the operations of the shopping centres. As at 31 December 2020, Mega Plaza LLP
early repaid the debt within the grace period provided.

Sale of apartments located on the grounds.of ISEEXPO-2017 to individuals and legal-entities under
instalment agreements provides for that long-term receivables are secured by the sold real estate
(apartments, parking lots) registered as coflateral.

Sale to -individuals on the by-instalments basis is subject to the following terms: an initial
of the loan value; a guarantee deposn; makes up at Ieast zhree

- -prowdes fora péi‘tlél early. ref:éymenf and-full early’ repaymcnt of the- ioan Wlthout a comn'nssmn“"'.'."":"I"‘  ——

fee being charged.

Sale to legal entities on the by-instalments basis is subject to the following terms: a loan carries an
annual interest rate of 2% and matures in 10 years; the. contract provides for a partial early

repayment and full early repayment of the loan, without a commission fee being charged.

To discount cash flows from. instalment agreements concluded with individuals, the Company uses
an average interest rate applied by second-tier banks- for mortgage loans to individuals, using .a
market interest rate of 14.3% on initial recognition.

To-discount cash flows from instalment agreements concluded with legal entities, the Company

uses- the—stahsties—ef—th&RSE—NaHena}—Bank af—ﬂ1e-RK —an—lang*tenn—loaua issued-to-banks; by
types-ofeconom on-tiredues ; 019

v Atk 5a ll.l.d.l.l&bl. JJ.I.LUI.C:)L rate

of 14.02% on 1n1t1al recognmon
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kﬂ_z:zk!rstan Morigage Company” J’SC)
Note’s 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

After the merge of BD JSC with the Company, the special-purpose loan agreements signed by and
between Yelorda Kurylys Companiyasy LLP and the Gity Administration of Nuz-Sultan city,
intended to allocate funds from the National Fund of the Republic of Kazakhstan for financing the
completion of the troubled housing construction projects in Nur-Sultan under the Nurly Zher
Programme, were transfetred to the Company. The City Administration of Nur-Sultan city
(Akimat) gaarantees the performance of obligations by Yelorda Kurylys Companiyasy LLP to the
Company under the special-purpose loan agreement, including repayment-of principal amount and
interest,

As at 31 December 2020, loans jssued and long-term receivables from legal ‘entities were not
overdue, except long-term receivables from NCO Umit Fund of KZT 501,380 thousand overdue
118 days (31 December 2019: none of long-term receivables were overdue).

The loan issued to Mega Plaza LLP was secured by real estate (shopping and entertainment centre
in Nur-Sultan city), which market value exceeded the loan carrying amourit.

The movement int balances of loss allowance for loans issued and receivables from sale of property
to legal entities under instalment agreements are as follows:

31 Decéimber 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-menth Lifetime ECL Lifétime ECL
expected eredit on dssets not on credit-
000 KZT losses (ECL) ‘credif-impaired impaired assets Total
Loatis and long-term ieceivables from .
sale of property to legal eritities under
instalment agreements
Balance at the beginning of the year - “
Originated as a result of the merger

with BD JSC (Note 27) 90,303 2,486,685 - 2,576,988
Net remeasurethent of loss allowance- 2,463,525 {225,116) 219,252 2,457,661
Balance at the-end of the year 2,553,828 2,261,569 219,252 5,034,649

Key assumpftions and judgments used to estimate loss allowance for loans and long-term
receivables from sale of property to legal entities under instalment agreeniients

At the reporting date, the calculations of expected.credit [osses of the Company were adjusted as
follows:

1) Management performed quality and quantity analysis of fransfer of financial assets from
Stage 1 to Stage 2, taking into account the deferral of payments provided under instalment
agreements under the Nurly Zher Programme, which resulted in significant increase in the
amount of expected credit losses on the assets at Stage 2.

2)  Considering the current economic situation arid the adverse impact-expected from the spread
of COVID-19, the. Company calibrated the PDs of all financial assets for macroeconomie
factors, taking into account the scenario analysis based on forecast macroeconiomic data.

~Incorporatior of forward-looking information

credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and. the
measurement of ECL. The Comipany uses expert judgment in assessment of forward-looking
information. This assessment is based ori the information from external sources.

External information may include économic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies

and. monetary authorities in the countries where the Company operates, such as the NBRX and
Ministry of National Economy, and selected private sector and academic forecasters:

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk. and credit losses for each

portfolio of financial instruments and, using an amalysis of historical data, has -estimated

relationships-between-macro-econemie-variables-and eredit risk-and credit losses:
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These key drivers are GDP forecasts, change in unemployment rates and other econonic. factors.
‘The economic. scenarios used as at 31 December 2020 were based on the’ key indicator values
projected for Kazakhstan for the years 2021-2024.

2021 2022 2023
- i Base Base Base
GDP growth Scenario-3.4%  Scéndrio—4.0%  Scenaro —4.6%

Considering the Company’s limited historical data on defanlt rates, the Company used data from

rating agencies as inputs for the econoniic scenarios. Scenarios are regularly reviewed dnd are used
‘to asses credif risk grades.

Projected ratios of key indicators, default events and loss rates_on various portfolios of financial
assets have been developed based on the rating agencies® studies over the past 30-40 years.

‘The amount of principal of loans to. customers or loans purchased from counteragents of
KZT 7,588,178 thousand in 2019: serves as collatersl for debt securities issued by:the Company

As at:3]1 December 2019, the carrying amount of these debt securities is KZT 6,560,500 thousand

The maturity of the Bank’s loan portfolio as at the reporting date is presented in Note 24(e), which
shows the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity of the loans.

(¢)  Asset securitisation
During:2020, sécured debt securities were redeemed.
(Note 19).
()  Loan maturities
o
16 Finance lease receivables

The compdnents of net investments in.finance lease as at 31 Deceniber 2020 and 2019 and are as
follows:

31 Decembeér 31 December

‘000 KZT 2020 _ 2019

Less than 1 year 13,358,281 10,777,612
From 1 to'2 years 13,340,144 10,966,770
From 2 to 3 years. 13,327,935 10,966,455
From 3 to 4 years 13,326,316 10,964,345
From 4 to 5 years 13,317,062 10,964,036
More thar § years 146,913,557 133,125,436
Minimum lease payments 213,583,295 187,764,655
Less unedrned finance income: _ '
Less than 1 vear (4,750,055) (4,240,1 35)
From 1 to 5 years (18,103,166) (15,923,361)
More than'5 years (23,237:423) (22,895,859
Liess unearned finance income (46,000,644) (43,059,355)

. Net investment in financelease ~ ~ ~~ oo 164,270,564

The Company leases out housing real estate under Nutly Zher Programme and Own Programme,

These lease agreements.are classified as finance lease under IFRS 16 because- ownership of the
assets gets transferred to lessees by the end of the Jease term, and at the inception the present value
of the minimuim ledse payménts amourits to substantially all of the fair value of the leased assets.

The finance lease agreements under Own Programme have a maturity term of up to 20 years and
bear nominal interest rates of 11.50% and 13.00%. The finance lease agreements for Nurly Zher
Programme have a maturlty term of 20 years and monthly lease paymenits limited to' KZT 1,120
per square meter for Almaty and Astana cities and KZT 924 per square meter in other regions. The

________________ interest rate implicit in the lease agreements under Nurly Zher Propramme is31%.__

48

43,791,036, LT T



(@)

Kazakiistan Housing Company JSC (foriner Mertgage Organisation “K, azrrk._‘js!au Morigage Company” JSC)
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In accordance with the certificate of transfer dated 30 July 2020, the balances of finance lease
receivables under finanee lease contracts with individuals and legal entities, were transferred in the
amount of KZT 22,719,257 thousand.

Analysis of collateral

The following table provides information on ¢ollateral, leased assets and other credit enhancemeénts
securing finance lease receivables, net of impairment allowance, as at 31 Décember 2020 and 2019,
by types of collateral.

Fair _va_lue -of
coll_a’_teral: for
ecllateral

Fair value of
collateral:

Carrying for collateral  assessed as of  Fair valueof
“000 KZT _ amount of loans assessed as of  loan inception  coliateral not
31 December 2020 to custoiiters  reporting date date defermined
Not overdue loans 144,498,673 144,498,673 - -
Overdue loans 19,771,891 19,771,891 - -

164,270,564 164,270,564 - -
31 December 2019
Not overdue loans: 130,016,780 130,016,780 - -
Overdue loans 13,774,256 13,774,256 - -

143,791,036 143,791,036 - -

The tables above exclude overcollateralisation.

The Company has no finance lease receivables, for which the fair value of collateral was assessed
at the loan inception date and it was not updated for further changes, and finance lease receivables
for which the fair value of collateral is not determined. Information on the valuation of collateral is
based on when this estimate was made, if any.

The recoverability of finance lease receivables which are neither past due nor. impaired primarily
depends -on the creditworthifiess of lessees rather than the value of collateral, and the Company
does not necessarily update the valuation of collateral as at each reporting date.

Credit guality of finance léase receivables

The following table provides information en the credit quality of finance lease receivables as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019: '
31 December 2020
Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL
on assets not on credit-

12-month
expected credif

000 KZT tosses (ECL) credit-impaired impaired assets Total
~ not overdue ) 134,125,996 7,975,763 4,307,012, 146,408,771
- overdue up to 30 days 8,323,029 467,529 570,717 9,361,275
oz OVEIANE J0BO AAYS i B 688146 16950
- woverdue 90:179°days - e Tl 205000849
- overdue 180-360 days - ; 2,479,275 2,479,275
- overdue more than 360 days . - 1,338,350 1,338,350
142,449,025 12,131,438 12,912,188 167,492,651
Loss allowance (913,399) (1,109,071)  {1,199,617) (3,222,087)
Carrying amount 141,535,626 11,022,367 11,712,571  164,270;564
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I'
[ 31 December 2019
' 12-month Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
P o expected credit om assetsnot  on credit-
‘000 KZT losses (LCL) credit-impaired impaired assets "Fotil
i - nof overdue 130,517,860 369,758 111,576 130,999,194
~overdue up to 30 days 8,623,626 103,576 - 8,727,202
[ - overdue 30-89 days - 3,151,461 8,182 3,159,643
- - overdue 90-179 days’ . - 1,110,569 1,110,569
- overdue 180-360 days - - 555,673 555,673
o --overdue more than 360 days _ - - 153,019 153,019
139,141,486 3,624,795 1,939,019 144,705,300
i Loss allowance (311,070) (391,984) (211,210) (914,264)
- Carrying amount 138,830,416 3,232,811 1,727,809 143,791,036
Analysis of movements in loss allowance

Movement in the allowarice for finance lease receivables in. 3 stages, as at the beéginning and end
[ of the period is as follows:

2020

{ 12-month  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
expected credit-  on assets not on eredit Total
P losses (ECL) .credit-impaired impaired assets ‘000 KZT
Balance at the beginning of the year 311,070 391,984 211,210 914,264
[ Transfer to-Stage 1 16,771 {13,048) (3,723) -
P Transfer to Stage 2 (11,820) 44,408 (32;588) -
Transfer to Stage 3 {7,804) (119,557) 127,361 -
[ Net remeasurément of loss o
allowance 551,620 563,800 (51,827} 1,063,599
{ New financial assets originated or _ _
purchased 33,229 3419 806 37,454
i Allowance on the date of merge with o
BD-J8C 20,202 243,052 242,668 1,205,922
[ Other changes 131 (4,993) 5,710 848
¢ Balance at the end of the year 913,399 1,109,071 1,199,617 3,222,087
3 2019
12-month Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL
expected eredit  on.assets not .on eredit- Total
losses (ECL).. credit-impaired impaired assefs ‘006 KZT
Balance at the beginning of the year 226,125 393,335 105,777 725,237
. Transferto Stage 2 T (2800753) L 303302 e BDBBOY e o i e e e
Transfer to Stage 3 (94,831) (68,629) 163,460 -
Net remeasurement of loss N ' _ _
I allowance 433,178 (233,025) (39.853) 160,300
New financial assets originated or _
i purchased. 19,715 2,854 920 23,489
Other changes 886 23 4,329 5,238
i Balance at the end of the year 311,070 391,984 211,210 914,264
|
]
l
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Significant changes in gross carrying amount of finance lease receivables are as follows:

2020
‘D00 KZT Stage 1 Stage.2 Stage 3 Total
Finance lease receivables
Balance at 1 January 139,141,485 3,624,795 1,939,019 144,705,299
Transfer to Stage 1 2,027,866 (1,543,682) (484,184) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (4,528,579) 4,895:490 (366,920) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (2,801,538) (1,126,717) 3,928,255 -
‘New financial assets originated or _
purchased _ 5,042,482 247,943 1,040,680 6,331,105
‘On the date of merge with BD JSC 10,200,397 6,755,970 6,968.877 23,925,244
Derecognised financial assets (6,632,334) (722,591) (114,553) (7,469,478)
Other changes (755) 221 1,016 482
Balance at 31 December 142,449,024 12,131,438 12,912,190 167,492,652
2019

‘000 KZT Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Total
Finance lease receivables _
Balance at | January 136,561,311 4,169,001 1,148,021 141,878,333
Transfer to Stage [ 2,843,129 (2,510,362) (332,767) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (2,463,992) 2,706,108 (242,116) -
Transfer to Stage 3  (877,853) (559,348) 1,437,201 -
New financial asséts originated or.
purchased _ 9,256,647 38,296 12,341 9,307,284
Derecognised financial assets (6,178,643) (218,922), (87,990) (6,485,555)
Other changes 886 23 4,329 5,238
Balarice at 31 Decémber 139,141,485 3,624,796 1,939,019 144,705,300

i 17 Assets to be transferred under finance lease agreements

i Assets to be transferred under finance lease contracts comprise the residential conipléxes purchased

by the Company during the reporting period which the Company is planning to transfer to the
¢ lessees. in 2021. '

The major portion of the assets relates to assets to be transferréd under Nurly Zher 'Program_me.-

During 2020, the largest micro-district housing complexes dequired by the Company are located in
[ the cities of: Nur-Sultan and Karaganda, of KZT 2,652,601 thousand (in 2019: micro-district

housing ‘complexes located in the cities of Aktau, Kostanay, and Akfobe, of
[ KZT 1,482,688 thousand). '

Construction-in-progress

-~ Construction-in-progress - capitalised costs ncurred by the Company under. the i

(- implementation of the state and government programmes adopted earlier (the Housing Construction
: Programine Nurly Zher adopted in accordance with.the Decree No. 372 of the Government of the
| RK dated 22 June 2018, the State Programme of Infrastructure Development “Nurly Zhol® for 2015-

2019 adopted in accordance with the Edict of the President of the RK. No, 1030 dated 6 April 2015,
{ the Regions Developnient Programme till 2020 approved by the Decree No. 728 of the Government

of the Republic of Kazaklistan dated 28 June 2014), integrated with the Nurly Zher Housing
{ Construction Programmeé and the State. Programme for Housing -and Communal Development

“Nurly Zher” for 2020-2025 ‘approved by the Decree No.1054 of the Government of the Republic
| of Kazakhstan dated 31 December 2019 ( the “programmnie™). The Company lease out the.
' constructed housing estate in accordance with the terms established by the Nurly Zher Programme,
{ through signing the finance lease contracts.
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As at 31 December 2020, the large construction project 15 the project located in the 14th micro--
district of Karaganda city worth KZT 1,099,726 thousand (2019: the lar o¢ construction project is
the project located in the 14th micro-district of Karaganda city, worth KZT 1,099,726 thousand).
Debt securities issued

Debt securities issued as at 31 December 2620 and 2019 comprised KZT~ denominated bonds.

Maturity  Nominal c’du’pon.. 2020 __2019
Issne . date . rite Effective rate ‘000 KZT 000 KZT
KZ2C00006641  09.04.2022 4.05% 13.99% 162,297,012 -
KZ2C00006807  25.06.2030 6.02% 12.54% 132,772,391 -
KZ2C00006815°  14.08.2031 6.02% 12.45% 130,781,398 S
KZ2C00007094:  29:13.3032 6.02% 11.41% 65,683,297 .
KZ2C00006823  22.10.2032 6.02%, 12.17% 163,552,860 -
KZ2C00006831  22.10.2032 6.02% 1217% 63,532,859 -
KZ2C00005973  28.06:2029 9.75% 10.35% 41,982,500 .
KZ2COY 10F013/ _
KZ2C00003333  15.12.2027 10.50% 9:97% 30.433,345 30,461,640
KZ2C00006179  29.08.2029- 10.00% 10.12% 25,847,222 -
KZX000000054  28:12.2033 9.58% 9.58% 20,973,967 20,015.967
KZ2€:00004356/ o _
KZ2COY20F889  21.06.2049 2.99% 10.14% 170,880, 281,963
KZ2C00004349  06.08.2050 0.10% 12,41% 19,004 -
KZ2COYOTESLT - : _ : _
KZ2C00002160  26.07.2020 8.5% 8.51% 10,363.338
KZ2COYORE218/ - - - -
KZ2C00001741  02.04.2020 7,00% 10.87% . 6.560,590

738,066,735 67,683,718

During the year ended 31 December 2020, with a view to attracting investments to support the
entrepreneurship and ensure stability in the labour market, as part of implementation of the
Employment Roadmap for 2020-2021, the Coempany issued 500,000,000 bonds traded at
Kazakhstan Stock Exchange (KASE). at the price of KZT 1,000. per bond, with maturities from

11 to 12 years, The bonds were recognised on the Company’s balance sheet at fair value of

KZT 314466181 thousand, calculated using market rates ranging from 11.41% to 12.45% per
annum,; where the difference berween nominal and fair values of KZT 185:533,819 thousand was
recognised as a-government grant; the-sum of KZT 177,661,633 thousand was tsad to buy Bonds
issued by the local executne bOdIGS and the sum of'KZT 7 872,186 tl '

ond-coupon-rate 15-6 ~Interesf-is- pald once : yea :

In accordance with the bond issue.prospects, the Compdny repaid the principal amount of issued
securities of KZT 16,507,000 thousand.

Other borrowed funds

20
220 2019
_ “000 KZT 000 KZT
Loan from the National Managemen( Holding “Baitcrek™ ISC 203134956 . 28.466,442
Dueto the Governmenit of the Republic of Kﬁzakh'&;’tan __ 3308951 4,933,018,
Die to Akimat of Nur-Sultan city 263.779 -
208,647,686 33.389.460
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As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December-2019, other botrowed funds comprised loans from the-
NMC “Baiterek™ JSC received under the State Programme of Infrastructure Developraent “Nurly
Zho!™ for 2015-2019 adopted in accordance with the Edict of the President of the RK dated 6 April
2015, No.1030; and “Regions Development Programme till 2020" approved by the Decree No. 728
of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 28 June 2014, which were integrated with.
the Programme of Housing Construction “Nurly Zher” with regard to construction and acquisition
of the leased and credit housing properties. As set out in the Nuly. Zher programme, the purpose of
the loans is te finance construction and acquisition of housing real estate to.be further leased out
under finance lease contracts. The loans bear a nominal interest rate 6 0;15% peér annum and mature
in January 2045, January 2046 and June 2046. The principal is repayable at maturity. At initial
recognition these loans were recognised at fair value calculated by discounting the contractual
future cash flows.on the loans, applying appiopriate estimated market interest rates ranging from
6.9%.to 8.0%. The discount ori these loans was recognised as government grant (Note 21).

Amounts due to the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan consist of a loan received in
December 2007 from the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan for the purchase of
mortgage loans from second-tier banks. The loan carries a nominal interest rate of 0.1% per annum
with principal repayable at ‘maturity in December 2027, The fair value of the loan at initial
Tecognition was estimated by discounting the contractual future cash flows of the loan using
management’s estimate-of a long-term market borrowing rate for the Company of 8% p.a.

In December 2020, in accordance with the loan agreement concluded between Akimiat of Nur-

Sultan city and the Company worth KZT 478,500 thousand, intended for purchase of apartments in
‘Makhabbat-2 Residential Estaté, for further on-credit sale of apartments to individuals af the interest
rate'0f3.1%. The loan carries a nominal interest rate-of 0.15% perannum and matures in December
2037.

The loan was recognised on the Company’s balance sheet at fair value of KZT 203,456 thousand,
calculated vsing the market rate of 10.13% per ainum, and the difference of KZT 275044 thousand
between nominal and fair values was recognised as a government grant (Note 21).

Reconciliation of movements of liabilitfes to cash flows arising from financing activitics during
the year ended 31 December 2020:

Liabilitiés:
Dbt securities:  Other borrowed
‘008 KZT issued funds Total
Balance-at 1.J: anuaryfzﬂzo 67,683,718 33,389,460 101,073,178
Changes from financing cask flows
Proceeds from issue of debt securities 500,479,994 478,500 -500,958.494
Repurchase/repayment of debt securities
issued (16,507,000) - (16,507,000).
Total changes from financing cash flows 483,972,994 . 478500 484,451,494
Interest expense 32,276,294 8,009,473 40,285,767
o TEteRest PRl T (10,098,844) . ... .(429,126). - - - (]0,527,747) e e

Difference arising on initial recognition of
financial instruments at the above-market/ o
below-market rates {185,533,81 9) (275,044 {185,808.863)
Balance at 31 December. 2020 738,066,735 208,647,686 946,714,421
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3 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities during
the year ended 31 December 2019: '

Liabilities Total
( y Debt securities  QOther borrowed
‘000 KZT issued ‘funds
- Balance at 1 January 2019 66,920,124 31,320,645 98,240,769
Changes from financing cash flows.
I' Proceeds fron issue of debt securities 11,425,002 - 11,425,002
Repurchase /repaymerit of debt securities
[ issued (10,000,000 ) (10,000,000)
I Total changes from financing cash flows 1,425,002 - 1,425,002
Interest expense: 5,662,460 2,276,541 7,939,001
P Interest paid (6,323,868) (207,726) (6,531,594)
Balance at 31 Décember 2019 67,683,718 33,389,460 101,073,178
| 21 Government grants
[ 2020 2019
‘000 KZT 000 KZT
[ Balance at the beginning of the year . 98,052,131 102,126,2 87
‘Origination of a grant for the loan from Akimat of Nur-Sultan
{ ity (Note 20) 275,044 .
Origination of a government grant in the form of discount o '
i debt securities issued (Note 19) 185,533,819 -
Utilisation of a government grant for bonds of local executive-
[ bodies (Note 14) _ (181,589,459) -
B Discount recalculated due to early partial rederuption of bonds .
a by the local exscutive bodies (Note 14) 200,474 -
Governmerit grants originated on‘loans issued at lower interest '
£ rates during the period as'a result of the merge (Note 27) 100,868,263 _ -
' Amortisation for the year ' (5,776,796) {4,074,156)
f' ' Balance at the end of the year 197,563,476 08.052,131
[ A government grants originated on the loan issned at a soft lending rate to purchase property item
was KZT 275,044 thousand. '
{ Government grant liabilifies on financing Nurly Zher Programme and Employment Roadmap for
2020-2021will be utilised as far as discount on purchase of local executive bodies’ bonds at a low
f interest rate is recognised, .and a part of Government grants will he amortised in other income as
interest under hire-purchase contracts, on a straight-line basis over the period of 20 years as far as
[ finished flats are recorded on the Company’s balance sheet.
| 22 Deferred income on financial guarantees provisions
2020 2019
- QUKZT
. Deferred ing orie from finiahcidl guarantee contracts under the, .. oo oo o oo -
constriction projects ' 1,035,317
{ Deferred income on financial guarintees 33,425 -
_ Total deferred incomeé on financial guarantees 1,068,742 -
| Provision for losses incurred but not reported under contracts. _
for guarantees for construction-projecis 12,386,342 -
[ Provision for claims on financial guarantees. 1,483
Total provision for financial guarantees liabilities. 12,387,825 -
| Balance at the end of the year 13,456,567 -
{
|
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~As-at-the teporting date the ‘Company charged provisian 71
.'"'Bagystan against construction risks, forthe amount-of KZ 15,887,028 theusand; which-sum- 1s=equal'

Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Mortgage Organisation “Kazakhstan Morigage Company " JSC)
-Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Deferred income on financial guarantees

2020 2019

000 KZT 000 KZT
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Financial guarantee commission received as a result of the
meérger 33,461 -
Financial guarantee commission earned (1E7)y -
Commission from financial guarantee contracts related to
construction projects, received as a result of the merger
(Note 27) _ 1,139,377 -
Earned commission from financial guarantee contracts related
'to construction projects (insurance preminm) (297,364) -
Commission from financial guarantee contracts related to
construction projects received 204,798 -
Financial guarantee commission 96 -
VAT payable on income {11,509} -
Balance at the end of the year 1,068,742 -

Deferred income for issued. guarantees iricludes a portion of financial guarantee fees and a portion
of the commissions for granting a guarantee for construction projects that are estimated to be earned
in the next or subsequent financial years, caleulated separately for each fitiancial guarantee contract

and each contract for the" provision of guarantees for construction projects, using .a proportional
‘meéthod.

Analysis of movements in provisions for claims on financial guarantees.

2020 2019
‘000 KZT M0 KZT
Balance. at the beginning of the year - -
Change in provisions for financial guarantee contracis 798 -
Change in provisions for financial guarantee contracts as a
result-of the merger 685 -
Balance at the end of the year 1,483 -

Analysis. of movements: in provisions for claims on financial guarsantees under construction
pro;ects

2020 2019
_ ‘000 KZT 000 KZT
Balance-at the beginning ‘of the year: - -
Movements in provisions under contracts for the provision of
guarantees for construction. projects 9,483,772 -
Movements in provi_s_io_'n's for financial guarantee contracts
related to construction projects, received as a result of the

- merger (Note 27) o 2902870 . . -

Balance at the end of the year 12,386,342 -

to the estimated damages resulting from delays in construétion and assembly works, from faiture to
meet target sales of apartmients, and also intended to settle complaints of participants filed with
government bodies about non-fulfilment by the developer of its contractual obligations due to the

latter being significantly behind the scheduléd date for commissioning of multi-family residential
bulldmgs

Key assumptions used to calculate provisions under contracts for granting guarantees for
construction projects

Assumptions used to assess insurance assets and liabilities are adopted for more accurate-estimation

of reserves needed to cover any future liabilities for insurance contracts.

incurred in respect of events up to thal date whether reported or not



{ Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kazakhstan Mortgage Company” JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yedi endled 31.December 2020

I The assumptions are checked to ensure that they are consistent with observable market information
[ or other published information. There:is, however, a general lack of publicly availzble information

on the Kazakhstan insurance market that would be relevant. to identification of ‘assumptions and
[ sensitivities. The estimation of incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) is generally subject to a

greater degree of uncertainty than the estimates of ouistanding claims already notified.

To determine the probability of occurrence of an insured. event, the Company uses the assignied

P rating of an authorised company / developer, which determines the level of risk. The rating takes
' into account both the quantitative and qualitative indicators of the authorized company / developer:
[ return on sales, return on assets, quick liquidity ratio, solvency ratio, intere_st_cove_r_a‘ge ratio, ¢urrent-
to-assets ratio, total liabilities to equity ratio, commissioned square meters of the total area -of

- ‘"housing, the category of license of the general contractor, techni¢al equipment.

The factor indicating the increased probability of insured event to occur is. the fact that the
| authorised company/ a.developer has applied to extend guarantee period due to delays in
P construction and assembly works and failure to meet apartment target sales.

_ ‘Taking into accourt that fulfilment of obligations by the developer and construction company are
[ secured by the pledged share of participation of the developer in the authorised company and the
pledged land plot (rights to it), the amount of actual compensation in the event of an insurance case
[ as assessed by the Company depend on the completion stage and value of construction project and
. changes in market prices of real property.

Estimation of expected losses is reassessed as the Company dccumulates statistical data:

t Management of the Company believes. that the reserves on the portfolio of guarantee contracts. for
construction projects are sensitive, mainly to.changes in the estimated probability of occurrence of
[ an insurance case and estimated compensation in the event of an insurance case. The Company
[ regularly reassesses its estimates based on the latest values of the above variables:

o If a probability of occurretice of an insurance case changes by plus/minus-one pércent, the size of
P insurance: reserves would be higher/lower by KZT 123,863 thousand (2019:
. KZT 222,890 thousand). '

If the amount of estimated compensation in the évent of an insurance case is changed by plus/minus
[ 5% of the amount of the claim, the amount of insurance reserve would be lower/higher by
KZT 557,611 thousand (2019: KZT 284,074 thousand). '

|
. 23 Share capital and reserves
(a)  Issued share capital and share premium
i As at 31 December 2020 authorised share capital comprises-22,000,000 ordinary shares (as at
[ 31 December 2019: 13,681,000 ordinary shares). As at 31 December 2020 issued and oufstanding

share-capital comprises 17,881,022 shares (2019: 6,331,380); inicluding treasury shares (Note (¢
by e comprises 17,881,022 shares (201:

—Inraccordance with -Kazakhstan legislation the Compatiy’s distributablé véserves are limited to the — "™
[ balance of retained earnings as recorded in the Company’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards or profit for the year if there is an
[ accumulated loss brought forward. A distribution cannot be-made if this would result in negative
equity or the Company’s insolvency.
[ During the year ended 31 December 2020, dividéends of KZT 2,577,532 thousand or
KZT'423.84 per ordinary share were declared and paid, based on the Company’s previous year
! results (2019: dividends in the amount of KZT 1,385,764 thousand or KZT 227.87 per ordinary
{ share were declared and paid, based on the previous year results), '

(c)___Treasury shares
%%WMWWWWW
|

E
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() Reserve capital
- The Company has established a teserve capital in accordance with a decision of shareholders. As at
B 31 Decernber 2020 and 2019 the reserve capital was KZT 2,734,447 thousand. This reserve capital
| is not subject to distribution.

[ During the yedrs ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 the shareholders made no transfers from
retained éarnings to the reserve capital.

I (e)  Other provisions in retained earnings

The Company created areserve for the settlement of the guarantee event, in accordance with Article

[ 29 of the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated April 7, 2016 “On Shared Participation in

[ Housing Construction™. The reserves for the settlement of guarantee cases can bé used solely for
the purpose of payments rélated to the Company's obligations. under the guaraitee agreements. As

¢ at: 31 December 2020, provision for setilement of guarantee events was KZT 11,152,219 thovisand
and it is not subject to distribution.

b (f)  Book value per share

Under the listing rules of the KSE, the Company should present book value per share in its financial

[ staternents. The book value per share is. calcilated by dividing net assets less intangible assets by

i the number of outstanding ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2020 the book value per share was

KZT'11,340.87 (2019: KZT 11,326.54).

24 Risk management

Management of risk is fundamental to the lending business and is an essential element of the
P Company’s operations. The major risks faced by the Company-are those related to interest rate and
-currency risks, credit risk and liquidity risk.

- {(a) Risk management policies and procedures

The Company’s risk management policies aim to identify, analyse.and manage the risks faced by

l ‘the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to: cont’inuously'monitor risk levels

" and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect

' changes in market conditions, bank products and services offered and emerging hest practice.

. The Board of Directors has overall respensibility for the oversight of the. risk management
framework, overseeing the management of key risks-and reviewing its risk management policies

r and procedures as well as approving significantly large exposures.

The Management Board of the Company is responsible for monitoring-and implémentation of risk

l mitigation ‘measures and making sure that: the Company. operates within the established risk

l' parameters. The Head of Risk Department of the Company is responsible for the overall risk
management and compliance functions, ensuring the implementation of common principles and

[ methods for identifying, measuring, managing and reporting both financial and non-financial risks,

- The Asset Liability.and Risk Management Committee develops proposals on assets/liabilities and. =~
tisk‘managemment based on strategies, policies and procedures approved by the Management Board

E

-----and--t-he.-BQard- of Directors: . R S
. '-Béfh--'-éxtemal---wand's--internal‘--risk-----factorsmre“idenﬁﬁed"'an'c__i""man'aged" throughioit the Conipaty”s """
[ organisational structure. Particular attention is given to identifying the full range of risk factors and
determination of the level of assurance over the current fisk mitigation procedures. Apart from the
| standard etedit and market risk analysis, Risk Management Department monitors financjal and non-
financial risks by holding regular meetings with operational units in order 6 obtain gxpert
i judgments in their respective areas of expertise. The Board of Directors or.a regular basis examines
reports on risks, '
| (B Market risk
: Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate
!' because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and
B e — ~—other privé risks. Market Tisk arises from _open__posuions In interest rate, currency and equity’
- firranctat instruments, which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in
| the level of volatility of market prices.
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Kazakhstan. Hausmg Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kazakhitan Morigage Compaiy” JSC)
Notes. tg the Financigl Statemenis for the year entled 31 Décember 2020

2020 2019
000 KZT 2000 KZT
Profit or. loss Equity Profit or loss Equity
1G0 bp paral]ei rise ' 1,597,675 1,597,675 307.835 307,835
100 bp parallel fall {1,597.,675) (1,597,675) (307,835) (307,835)

An analysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and equity as a result of changes in the fair value of
financial instruments. at. fair value though profit or loss and financial assets available-for-sale due
to changes in the interest ratés based on positions existing ds at 31 December 2020 and 31 December

2019 and a simplified scenario of'a 100 basis point (bp) symmetrical fall or rise in all vield curves
is as follows:

2020 2019
KZT*000 KZT*000
_ _Profit or loss Equity Profit or loss Equity
100 bp parallel rise 265,080 265,080 283,857 283,857
IOO'bp p_alfallel fall {296,967) (296,967) (319,421) (319.421)

Currency risk
The Company has assets and liabilities denominated in USD.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company does not hedge its exposure to
cutrency risk.

The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and liabilities
as at:31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

UsDh
2020 2019
1000 KZT "800 KZT
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 805,003 749,350
Loans to customers 849 29,709
‘Other assets 7,627 -
Total financial assets: 813,479 779,059
Liabilities.
‘Other Habilities 15,574 -
Total financial liabilitics 15,574 -
‘Net on-and off balaliée sheet position _ 797,905 779 0'59 '

A change in the value of the KZT, as indicated below, against the foilowmg currencies at
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is on net of tax basis and is based on foreign
currency eéxchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possibie at the end
of the reporting penod The analys1s agsumes. that all other variables, in pamcular interest rates,

. Temain constant.-

‘2020 2019

—:':-20% aﬁpfeélaflonwof USD agamst KZL-romem 159,58 oo -1 5858 1o 124,649“““ 247649
3% depretidtion of USD against KZT (31,916) (31,916) (31,162) (31,162)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to-the Company if a customter or counterparty fo-a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company has pelicies and procedures. for

the management of credit exposures (both for recognised financial assets and unrecognised

contractual commitments), -including guidelines to limit portfolio concentration and the
establishment of ‘a Credit Committee, which actively monitors crédit risk, The credit policy is
reviewed and approved by the Management Board and the Board of Directors.

_Profitorloss .. _ Equity. . Profitorloss . . Equity. . . .o ...

The-credit-poli¢y-establishes:

. procedures for reviewing and approving loan applications:

. methodology for the credit assessment of borrowers;

60



Kazaklistan Housing Company JSC (former Mortgage Organisafion “Kazakhstan Morigage C‘ompan__vﬁ”ﬂ!SC).
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3/ December 2020
. methodology for the-credit assessment of counterparties, issuers and insurance companies;
. methodology for the:evaluation of collateral;
. credit documentation requirements;.
. procedures for the ongoing monitoring of loans and other credit exposures,

The main task of credit risk management is the application of'a weighted credit policy, considering
profitability with safety of asset allocation at purchase of mortgage loans and control over position
of loan portfolio based on in-depth, objective, complete and qualified monitoring,

Susceptibility to credit risk is ¢ontrolled by assessmént of the borrower’s ccreditworthiness,
obtaining high quality collateral, the receipt of a guarantees and obtaining recourse to the seller of
the loans.

‘The Company’s maximum exposure to-credit risk is generally reflected inthe carrying amounts of
financial assets in the statement of financial position and unrecognised coritractual commitiment

amounts. The impact.of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure
is-not significant.

The maximui exposure to credit risk from financial assets at the reporting date is as follows:

2020 2019
000 KZT 000 KZT

ASSETS |
Cash and cash ‘eqnivalents 63,619,060 32,735,123
Placements with banks and other financial instifutions 69,728,933 12,013,528
Investment securities: - _ _ _

- at fair value through profit or loss 2,932,039 2,719,292
~'at amortised cost 917,887,952 19,918,195
Loans to-customers and long-term receivables from sales of real N _
estate under instalment agreements 135,292 670 62,663,247
Finance lease receivables 164,270,564 143,791,036
Other financial assets 24,588 46,091
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 1,353,755,806 263,886.612

For the analysis of collateral held against loans to. customers and concentration of credit risk in
respect of loans to customers refer to-Note 13.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 the Company has no debtors or groups of
connected debtors, credit risk exposure to whom exceeds 10% of maximum credit risk. exposure.

Offsetting financial assets.and financial liabilities
The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets-and financial liabilities that:
» .-are Offse_t in .the Company’.s statem ent of ﬁna_ncial p_osition-‘ or

° are sub_]ect 1o an enforccable master nettmg arrangcment or smular agreement that covers

The agreements inclide global master repurchase agreements. Such financial instruments include
sale and repurchase agreements and reverse saleand répurchase agreements. The Company receives
and accepts collateral in the form of cash and marketable securities in respect of these sale and
repurchase and revérse sale and repurchase agreements.

The Company’s derivative transactions that are not transacted on the excharnige are entered into
under International Derivative Swaps and Dealers Association (I SDA) Master Netting Agreements.
In general, under such agreements the amounts owed by each counterparty that are due on a single
day in respect of transactions outstanding in the same currency under the agreement are aggregated
into a single net amount payable by one party to the other. In certain circumstances, for example

whei a credit event such as a default oceurs, all outstandiiig fransactions under the agréement are

terminated, the rermination value 1s assessed, and only a smgle net amount 15 due or payable in
settlement transactions,
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Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Mortgage Organisation “Kazakitstan Mortgage Cotpany” . J5C)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Liquidity risk

Liquidity. risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficilty in meeting the obligations
associated with-its findancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The matching and or
controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is. findamentat
to liquidity management. It is unusual for financial institutions ever to be completely. matched since
business: transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position
potenfially enhances profitability, but can also:increase the risk of losses,

The Comparly maintains liquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be
available at all times to honour all cash flow obligations as they become due. The Company’s
liquidity policy is reviewed by the Managerient Board and approved by the Roard of Directors.
The Company seeks to actively support a. diversified and stable funding base comprising: debt
sectirities in issue, long-term and.shoti-term loans from other banks, accompanied by diversified
portfolios of highly liquid assets, in order to be able to respond quickly and smoothly to unforeseen
liquidity requirements. '

The liquidity management policy of the Company requires:

. projecting cash flows by major currencies and taking into account the level of liquid-assets
necessary in relation thereto;

. maintaining-a diverse range of funding sources;

» managing the concentration and profile of debts;

' maintaining debt financing plans;

. maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can éasily be lquidated as protection
agdinst any interruptioi: to cash flow;

e  ingintaining liquidity and funding contingency plans;

. monitoring liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements.

The following tables show the undiscounted cash flows on the Company’s financial liabilities-on
the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. The total gross inflow and outflow disclosed
in the tables s thé contractual, undiscounted cash flows on the financial asset, liability or
commitment. The Company’s expectéd cash flows. on these financial liabilities may vary
significantly from this analysis. '
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Kazaklistan Housmg Company JSC ofarmer Morigage Organisation “Kazakhstan Morigage Company” JSC)
[ Notes to the Financial Siatemenis for the year-ended 31 Décember 2020

L 25 Insurance risk management

[ The Company enters into coniracts for the provision of guarantess for the completion of
N construetion. The Conipany guarantees the completion of the construction of a residential house in
I the everit of an insurance case and the transfer of shares in a residential building to-equity holders.
As at 31 December 2020 the Company had 27 insurance agreements that were in force. As at
I 31 December 2020 the maximum amount of liabilities under the valid guarantees issued by the
Company was; KZT 190,074,576 thousand).

‘The. main risk-that the Company faces under construction guarantee contracts is that the-actual
i payments for warranty cases or the.time of their payment may differ from those expected. Thus, the
Company's goal is to accumulate sufficient reserves to pay for these liabilities.

Insurance risk is mainly managed through the assessment of finarcial and legal risks associated
. with the developer. The Coampany assesses the financial condition of the developer, performs
analysis of the sources of financing the project, and conducts analysis of the adequacy of the price
. policy of the construction company. In addition, the Company also ¢onducts legal ‘assessment to
establish legal and reputational risks for the project. To secure the customer’s liability to complete
[ construction of a residential house the Company accepts 100% interest in the authorised company
and land plot with construction in progress-as a sectrity.

26 Capital management

The Company defines as capital the following items defined by statitory regulation as capital for
[ mortgage companies:

Tier | capital, which is comprised of ordinary share capital, share premium, prior periods’ statutory
| retained earnings, accumulated losses.and reserves created thereof and preference shares {(within
[ 15% of ordmary share.eapital) less intangible assets and current year statutory losses;

Tier 2 capital is required for the purposes of calculation of total capital and is ‘comprised of current
[ “year’s statutory income, revaluation reserves, preference shares (in excess of 15% of ordinary share
capital), qualifying subordinated liabilities and collective impairment allowance. in the amount not
{ exceeding 1.25% of credit risk-weighted assets.

[ Total capital, which is the sum of tier 1 capital and tier 2 capital (in the amount not exceeding tier
1 capital) less ihvestments into equity or subordinated debt.

| Various further limits and qualifying critéria dre applied to the above elements of the capital base.
1 Under the cutrent capital requirements set by the NBRK mortgage organisations have to maintain:
- a ratio of tier 1 capiidl to total statutory assets (k1);

~i=....-..aratio.of credit risk-weighted contingent liabilities decreased by the-amoninit of total reserves -~ o oo
(provisions) niot included in calculation of the equity (k1-2);

- 1atio:of total. capital to.the sum:of .credit risk-weighted. assets.and. contingent Habilities s i
----- decreased-by the-amount-of total-reserves (provisions) riot included ti-catculation 6f the
i equity and quantified operational risk (k1-3).
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Kazakhstan Housing Company J.S‘C (former Mortguge Organisation “Kazakhstari Morigage Company™ JSC)

Notes io the Financial Statements for the year enied 31 December 2020

2020 2019
000 KZT '000 KZT

Tier 1 capital
Share capital 190,847,155 60,728,939
General reserves 2,734,446 2,734,447
Additional paid-in capital 3,389,392 5,822,856
Intangible assets (134,229) (55.831)
Net loss for the year calculated as required by NBRK {5,100,541) o -
Statutory acclimulated losses for priot years (2,771,238) (8,785,472)
Total tier 1 capital 188,964,985 60,444,939
Tier 2 capital

F Total r_escrv_es_."(provis_ions) included in calculation of equity in
the amount not exceeding 1.25% of credit-risk weighted assets 7,846,184 -

[ Net (loss)/profit for the year in accordance with the NBRK

' requirements. - 8,591,766
Total tier 2 capital 7,846,184 8,591,766
Total capital 196,811,169 69,036,705
Total statutory assets 1,374,938,209 272,706,193
Credit risk weighted assets 627,694,733 220,064,309
Credit-risk weighted contingent liabilities 198,975,311
Operational risk 7,537,759 6,843,314
Total credit risk weighted assets-and contingent liabilities
plus aperational risk 834,207,803 226,907,623
Total reserves (provisions). not included in calculation of
equity 3,306,035 -
kX 14% 22%
kl-2 23% 27%
k-3 24% 30%

[ As at 31 December 2020 and 231 December 2019 the minimum level of ratios as applicable to. the
Company are as follows:

i -~k - 6%;

[ - k1-2 - 6%;

) - k1-3 ~ 12%.

| In accordance with the NBRK requirements a net loss comprises the Company’s net profit less

[ reserve for the settlement of the guarantee event, in accordance with Article 29 of the Law of the
Republic of Kazakhstari dated 7 April 2016 “On Shared Pamclpatlon in Housing Construction”

[ (Note 23(e)) as the reserve for the settlement of the guarantee event is resmcted for dJstnbutlon

Takeover of BD JSC and HCGF J SC
0516 July-2020; based-on: the résolution-of the absentee ‘meeting-of the"Managenrent Comiriittes =
of NMH Baiterek JSC, a decision was made to approve the Transfer Act concerning transfer to the

i ‘Company and the takeover agreement, as the successor of DB JSC, of all property, rights and
obligations of DB JSC, as well as all rights and obligations in respect of all its creditors and debtors,

{ and the Company's succession to all rights and obligations of DB JSC. In addition a decision'was
made to place the Company’s shares within the limits of ‘the authorised number of shares of
] 9,220,163 items at a price of KZT 11,239:54 per share, in favour of the Sole Shareholder of BD

JSC'in payment for the 100% of BD JSC shares.acquired by the Company. The Company’s share
l capital increased by KZT 103,630,354 after takeover.of BD JSC. On 30 Tuly 2020, after closing a

transaction on placement of the Company’s shares, BD JSC transferred all assets and liabilities, and
I the het assets were worth of KZT 100,682,460 thousand as at the date of transfer. Therefore, the
i Csm-pa.ny-reeo_gni-sed—K—ZFI’--2;94?~',?894-thousandr-irr—th&_addltiu_ual paid=up-capitat:




Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Mortgage Organisation “Kazakhsian Morigage Company” JSC)
Nates to the Financial Statenients for the year ended 31 December 2620

On 4 November 2020, based on the resolution of the abserntee ‘meeting of the Management
Committee of NMH Baiterck JSC, a decision was made to- approve the Transfer Act concerning
transfer to the Commpany and the takeover agreenient, as the successor of HCGF JSC, of all property,
rights and obligations of HCGF ISC, as well as all rights'and obligations in respect of all its creditors
and debtors, and the Company's succession to all rights and obligations of HCGF JSC. In addition
a decision was made to place the Company’s shares within the limits of the authorised number of
shares of 2,329,479 items at a price of KZT 11,370.72 per share, in favour of the Sole Shareholder
of HCGF JSC in payment for the 100% of HCGF JSC shares acquired by the Company, The
Company’s share capital increased by KZT 26,487,861 thousand after takeover of HCGF JSC. On
16 -November 2020, after closing a transaction on placement of the Company’s shares, HCGF JSC-
transferred all assets and liabilities, and the net assets were worth of KZT 26,853,426 thousand as
at the date of fransfer. Therefore, the-Company recognised KZT 365,565 thousand in the additional
paid-up capital.

As of the As of the date.
date of actual of approval by
transfer the shareholder 000 KZT

BD ISC riet assets 100,831,325 103,630,354 (2,799,029)
HCGF ISC net assets 26,853,426 26,487,861 365,565
Total 127,684,751 130,118,215 (2,433,464)

During the reporting period ended 31 Decernber 2020, the Company carried out a transaction to
acquire shares-of BD JSC and HCGF JSC by placing its shares in proportion to the share sales price
ratio.

‘The table below shows the-carrying amounts-of BD JSC acquired by the Company on'30 July 2020
and HCGF JSC acquired by the Company on 16 November 2020 as at the date of acquisition of”
shares of BD JSC and HCGF JSC, by issuing shares of the Company based on the camying amounts

‘stated in the financial statements of the Company.

For the'perod from the beginning of the reporting year and to the date of acquisition, the riet profit
of DB .JISC was KZT 7,436,649 thousand and that of HCGF ISC was KZT 1,922,234 thousand,
respectively.
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{ Kuzaldistan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kazakhistan Morigage Conipany” JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statenieins for the year-ended 31 December 2020

The.followmg--tablc summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and Jiabilities assumed
i at the takeover date:

BD JSC given
| BDJSC  the restated
" ‘000 KZT B JSC resiated data data HCGE JSC
} 30 July 16 November
Acquisition date 2020 2020
{ Assets N
Cash and cash equivalents 28,260,077 13,764 28,273,841 6,829,585
[ Amounts due from financial _ _ '
institutions 27,058,830, - 27,058,830 7,998,860
1 Othier financial assets measured at '
o amortised cost 552,361,717 3,987,766 556,349,483 20,900,221
b Loans and advances to customers 77,597,271 (112,431) 77,484,840 ' -
Finance lease receivables. 22,719.257 - 22,719,257 -
i Current tax asset 1,166,747 (28) 1,166,719 95,308
Asseis to be transferred under finance
i lease agreements, 3,864,321 - 3,864,321 -
Construction in progress _ 175,716 - 175,716 -
[ Property, plant and equipment and _
intangible assets 2,670,704 - 2,670,704 47,590
[ Investment property 5,492,982 - 5,492 982 108,536
Non-current assets ) _ .
held for sale 321474 - 321,474 -
f Deferred tax assets - - _ - 9,751
Other assets 2,161,949 46,331 2,208,280 7,705
[ Total dssets 723,851,045 3,935,402 727,786,447 30,997,556
! Liabilities |
. Debt securities issued 345,998,551 3,767,841 349,766,392 ;
{ Other borrowed funds 167,474 423 - 167474423 -
Government grants 100,868,263 - 100,868,263 -
[ Deferred income snd provisions for _
. guarantees issued - - - 4,076,891
[ Deferred tax liability 7.035,975 - 7,035,975 -
Other liabilities 1,791,373 18,696 1,810,069 67,239
i Total liabilities 623,168,585 3,786,537 626,955,122 4,144,130
Total net assets 100,682,460 148,865 100,831,325 26,853,426

Contingencies

Insurance

. The insurance industry in the Republic of Kazakhstan is in 2 developing state.and many. forms.of ... ..
insurance protection common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available, The

. Company purchases a property insurance service, which should include insurance of property that -~
i -.s_er;v:e_s"::‘as-'::-a;col_laterél;ébféthé:-—fimm-biﬁablé-:=-propér_t3z"~pled'g‘ed—'-at-'-'-t_he'w'e-ompany*aga;iﬁ-sf-fh'e-'mﬁﬁ-ﬁa‘;@g-'**f-*=-*-‘-‘M%'v"--'ww-"-‘~'*='~'=

loans, and insurance of leased housing, namely iis structural elements, against the risks of loss,
[ destruction and/or damage caused by natural calamities and entergency situationis of the natural,
climatic, household and/or man-made character, criminal and negligent actions of the third parties.
i Until the Company obtains adéquate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss or destruction

of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s operations and financial
t position.

! (b) Litigations
In the ordinary course of business, the: Company is subject to legal ‘actions and complaints.
| Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions-or complaints, will
f not-have a.material-adverse-effect-on-the financial-conditions-or-the results-of firture-operations o~

the Frimpa.n}r_
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--.mcluded in:thie- statementof profit-or.loss-are-as-follows: -

Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kazakhstan Morigage Company” JSC)
Notes o the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Taxation contingencies in Kazakhstan

The taxation system in Kazakhstan is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in
legislation, official pronduncements and court decisions, which are often unclear, contradictory and
subject to varying interpretation by different-tax authorities, in particular recognition of incoine,

expenses and other items of the financial statements under IFRS. Taxes are subject to review. and
investigation by various levels of athorities, which have the a_uthonty to impose severe fines and.
interest charges. A tax year generally remains open for review. by the tax authorities for five

subsequent calendar years; however, under certain circumstanices a tax year may remain open.
longer.

These circumstances may create tax risks in Kazakhstan that are more: significant than in other
countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for-tax Habilities' based on its
interpretations of applicable tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. However,
the interpretations. of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these financial
statements, if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant:

Related party transactions
Transactions with the members of the Management Board and Board of Directors.

Total remuneration included in employee compensation is as. follows (refer to Note 7):

20200 2019
2000 KZT 000 KZT
Members of the Board of Directors 17,144 16,210°
‘Members of the Manégement Board 183,686 128,286,
200,830 144,496

The above amounts inchide cash and non-cash benefits in respect of the members of the
Management Board and Board of Directors.

The outstanding balances and average interest rates as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

for transactions ‘with the members of the Management Board and the Board of Directors are as
follows;

2020 Average interest 2019 Average interest
000 KZT rate, % 0006 KZT rate; %
Statement of financial '
pos’ition'
Loans to customers. 51,369 3.00 - -
. Other liabilities . TRBTIO 3,00 39870 et

Amounts on transactions with the members of the Management Board and Board of Dlrectors

()

2020 2019
Statement of Profit and Loss 000 KZT 000 KZT

Interest income 752

Other rélated party transactions

Other related parties include NMH Baiterek JSC and its subsidiaries (together. the “Baiterek
Group™) and other state organisations.
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{ Kaznkhstan Housing Company JSC (former Mortgage Drgauisarion ‘_‘Kazqk!:_sr_un_Maﬂgagg Company” JSC)-
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

The amounts below are included in the statement of financial position and statement of profit or
i loss and other comprehensive income for transactions with other related parties as at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019:

2020 2020 2019 2019
= 2000 KZT 000 KZT *000 KZT *000 KZT
! Baiterek Government Baiterek Goveérnment
Group institutions . Group institutions
l Statement of profit or loss
Interest income 6,778,773 34,666,442 4,456,495 2,076,369
{ Interest expense (36211421)  (1,873326)  (4,056,144) (1,464 ,899)
Other operating income, net 177,449,253 (173,305,360) - -
f Fee and commission expense - (1,783) - {810)
Other income - - - 60,874
i (Ympairment fosses)/reversal of
| impairment | (27,188) (796,689) 17,623 (13,069)
I ‘General and administrative expenses 35,097 (608,345) (9,284) (454,710)
Incoime; tax expense ' - (2,194,096) - (1.327,345) .

The balances with other related parties.as at 31 December 2020 include:

I Baiterek Group Government institutions
» Average Average.
{ interest rate, interest rate,
‘000 KZT Yo o ‘000 KZT %
i Cash and cash equivalents 14,200,857 750 48,554,180 8.20
Due from banks 15,987,791 1.00 - -
I Investment securities measured at:
amortised cost - - 838,395,580 4.15
P Current tax asset - - 2,843,520 -
' Other assets 77,557 - 81,795 -
I Debt securities issued 707,443,506 6.04 11,957,444 1038
Other borrowed funds 203,134,956 0.17 5,512,730 0.10
[ Governtent graits 197,288,432 - 275,044 -
Deferred tax liability - - 11,098,775 -
[ Other liabilities’ - - 237,294 -

The balances with other related parties as at 31 December 2019 include;

Baiterek Group Government institutions
[ Avérage Average
interest rate, interest rate,
5 ‘000 KZT % ____ 000 KZT %
Cash and cash equivalents 2,819,938 775 23,782,799 .36
Investment securities. meastired at _
amortised cost - - 8936603 876
BTGB~ = e e P e e i
Othier assets - - 8,789 =
. Debt securities issued 22 1 945 17255716 . - . 978
" Othier borrowed funds. - 846640 T 0154923 018 0:10
Government grants 98,052,131 - - -
i Deferred tax liability - - 1,870,669 .
_ Other liabilities 93,178 - 129,846 .
|
{
{
[
H
§
i
H
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Kazakhstan Hovsing Coimpany JSC (former Morigage Organisation “Kazakhstas Morigage Company” JSC)
Notes to the Financial Siatements for the year ended 31 December 2020

‘Valuvation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models and comparison

to similar instraments for which market observable prices exist, and other valuation medels.
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates,
credit spreads and other premiia used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, formgn
currency exchange. rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price “volatilities and
comelations. The. objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that
reflects the price of the financial instriiment at the reporting date that would have been determined
by market participants acting at arm’s length.

‘The Company uses widely recognised: valuation models for determining the fair value of common
and more simple financial instruments, like interest rate and currency swaps that use only
observable market data and require little management judgment afid estimation. Observable prices
and model inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt and equity securities.

For more complex instruments, the: ‘Company uses proprietary valuation models. Some or all of the
significant inputs into these models may not be observable in the market, and are derived from
market prices or rates or-are estimated based on assumptions. Examplée of inistruments involving

significant unobservable inputs include certain loans and securities for which there-is no active
market,

The estimates of fair value are inténded to approximate the amount for which a financial instrument
can be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Howéver
given the uncertainties and the use of subjective Jjudgment, the fair value should not be interpreted
as being realisable in an immmediate-sale of the dssets or setilement of hablhtles

The followw.g assumptions are used by management to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

. discount rates of 6.5% -14.9% are used for discounting future cash flows from ldans fo

customers and receivables from sales of real estate under instalment agreements (2019:
11.9% -15.07%);

® discount rates of 9.9% are used for discounting fiiture cash flows from finance lease
receivables (2019: 9.1%);

. discount rates. of 10.85% aré used for dlscountmg future- cash inflows/outflows from
securities issues and other borrowed funds (2019: 10.1%).

Fair value hierarchy

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in-making the measuremernts:

e Level 1: quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

o Level 2 mputs other than quotes prices 1nc]uded within Level 1 that are obscrvable e1ther bt

“directly (e, as” prlces) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) “This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in dactive markets for similar instruments;
quoted: pnces for:identical or-similar. insttuments-in-markets-that-are-considered:less-thans:

active; orother valuation tccnmques whiére all significant inpufs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

. Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobseivable: inputs
have a sxgmﬁcant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments
that are valued based on. quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable.
adjustroents or assumptions are required to reflect difference between the instruments.
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asat 31 December 20

Kazakhstan Housing Cormpany JSC (former Mﬂr’igage-()rgam'sgrian_ “Kazakhsian Morigage Company”™ JSC)
Notes to the Financiul Statements for.the year ended 31 December 2020

The table below analyses financial instraments measured at fair value at 31 December 2020, by the
levelin the fair value hierarchy into which the fair valug measurement is categorised: The amounts
are based on the-values recognised in the statement of financial position:

Financial assets Level 2 Level 3 Total

Tnvestment securities measured at fair value _ o

through profit or loss: 2,066,079 865,960 2,932,039
2,066,079 865,960 2,932,039

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2019, by the.
level in'the fair value hierarchy-into which the fair valne measurement is categorised: The amounts
are'based on the values recognised in the statement of financial position:

Financial assets Level 2 Level 3 _ Total

Investment securities measured at fair value _ _

through profit o loss; 1,785,702 933,550 2,719,292
1,785,702 033,550 2,719,292

Changes in fair value measurements categorised to Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy for 2020,
were.as follows:

2020 2019

Financial assets

Balance at the beginning of the year 933,590 -
Net realised loss.on investment securities at fair value through _

profit or loss (19,505} -
Interest paid (87,135) -
‘Transfers into Level 3 39,010 933,590
Balarice at the end of the year 865,960 933,590

Total gains.or losses included in proﬁt or loss for 2020 in the ‘above table are presented in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
Financial assets
Net gain/(loss).on financial instruiments at fair value throngh _ -
profit or loss (19,505) (8,919)

During 2019, investment securities measured at fair value through profit.or loss were transferred
into Level 3. The table below sets out information about significant unobservabie inputs used at

20:

alation lue measurement-sensitivity
Type of instrument Fair value technigue tnputs to unobservable in puts
Investment securities Significant increase in any _qf_ the,
| pteion ssss Dl Disomiryeor N sy wil el
N -pro " 1088 s : cash flows 17.85% AIT Valug, signineant.

——

—

decteasc would resuit in higher fair
value/
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~...purposes.of IAS 14 Segment-Reportin

Kazakhstan Housing Company JSC (former Morigage 0rgan_:"satian “Kazakhistar Morigage Company” JSC)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended:31 December 2020

The following table analyses the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value, by
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value nicasurement is categorised as at
31 December 2020;

_ _ Total Total carrying

KZT*000 _ Level2 Level 3 fair vilues -amount
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 63,619,060 - 63,619,060 63,619,060
Placements with banks and other
-financial institutions 69,728,933 - 69,728,933 69,728,933
Investment securities measured at _ _ N
-amortised cost: 952,491,174 - 952:491,174 917,887,952
Loans to custorners and long-term

receivables fiom sales of real N S _
‘estate under instalment agreements 111,338,645 2,948 104 114,287,745 135,292,670
Finance lease receivables 93,556,875 8,954,298 102,511,173 164,270,564
Other financial assets 24,588 - 24,588 24,588
Liahilities'

Debt-sécurities issued 783,930,277 - 783,930,277 738,066,735
Other borrowed finds 143,258,180 - 143,358,180 208,647,686
Other financial liabilities 4,031,521 - 4,031,531 4,031,521

The following table analyses the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair-value, by’
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised as at
31 December 2019:

o Total carrying

KZT000 Level 2 Level 3 -Taotal fair valies amount
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32,735,123 - 32,735,123 32,735,123
Placements with bariks and other o _
financial institutions 2,013,628 - 2,013,628 2,013,628
Loans to customers 52,048,339 981,908 53,030,247 62,663,247
Finance lease receivables 93,130,986 397,489 93,528,475 143,791,036
Liabilities

Debt securities issued 63,918,540 - 63,918,540 67,683,718.
Other borrawed: funds 32,758,290 - 32,758,290 33.389.460
Segment reporting

The Company’s operations. are highly integrated and constitute a single business: segment for the

Kazakhstan, and the Company’s re_v_cnl._l_c's_ are derived from operations in, and connected with, the

‘he:Company’s-assets-are concentrated in-the Republicof

as a whole.

77




